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Board of Directors’ Report

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C. we have the pleasure in
presenting our Report on the performance of the Company along with the Audited Financial
Statements for the year ended 315 December 2022.

Despite the continued challenges faced by local insurers and the global economy, the Company's

financial results continued to improve and achieved a steady performance during 2022.

Key performance indicators were as follows:

e In 2022, the company recorded a Gross Premium of AED 868 million, compared to AED 900
million in 2021.

® In accordance with Central Bank regulations, the company continues to maintain technical
reserves as recommended by the actuary.

e The Company’s Financial Strength Rating of B+ (Good) and Issuer Credit Rating of BBB- (Good)
were affirmed by the International Credit Rating Agency A. M. Best. According to AM Best's
Press Release on 15 December 2022 — “these ratings reflect Union’s Balance Sheet strength,
which A.M. Best categorises as strong, as well as its adequate operating performance, limited
business profile and appropriate enterprise risk management”.

2022 Financial results

e The Underwriting Profit for the year 2022 amounted to AED 17 million (2021: AED 19.5
million).

e The company reported an investment profit of AED 6 million compared to a profit of AED
5.4 million for the year 2021.

e The Net Profit for the year 2022 amounted to AED 18.3 million, compared to AED 13.2
million for the year 2021.

e Total Equity of the Company increased to AED 254 million in 2022 from AED 235 million at
the end of the 2021.

e The Company's total assets are AED 1.9 billion at the end of 2022, compared to AED 2 billion
at the end of 2021.

The Management take this opportunity to thank all the shareholders and customers for their
continued support and also expres s their sincere appreciation to Company managers and staff for
their dedication and hard work.

For and on behalf of Union Insurance Co. P.J.S.C.

Chairman of the Board
Nasser Rashid Abdulaziz Almoalla
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Union Insurance Company P.].S.C. (the “Company”), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the statement of income, statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA). Out responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditot’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with International Ethics Standards Boatrd
for Accountant’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to out audit of the financial statements in the United Arab Emirates, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the requirements of IESBA Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022, These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these mattets.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UAE - All rights reserved. Grant Thornton UAE represents all legal licenses under which Grant Thornton Audit and Accounting

grantthornton.ae

Limited Corporation, A British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) registered Branch, operate in the UAE. These licenses include the Abu Dhabi, Dubai and Sharjah
based branches — Grant Thornton Audit and Accounting Limited —registered with the Abu Dhabi Global Market — Grant Thornton Audit and Accounting
Limited Corporation BVI —registered with the Dubai Financial Services Authority.

“Grant Thornton” refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or
refers to one ar more member firms, as the context requires. GTIL and the member firm s are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm
is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and i ts member firms are not
agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Union Insutance Company P.J.S.C (continued)
Key audit matters (continued)

ii) Valuation of insurance contract liabilities

The estimation of liabilities arising from insurance contracts amounting to AED 1,008,371 thousand (2021: AED
1,105,249 thousand) for insurance contract liabilities such as outstanding claims, incurred but not reported claims,
unallocated loss adjustment expenses and unearned premium reserve, as disclosed in note 14 to the financial statements,
involves a significant degree of judgement. These liabilities are based on the best estimated ultimate cost of all claims
incurred but not settled at a given date, whether reported ot not, together with the related claims handling costs and
the pattern of risk distribution over the coverage petiod. Actuarial computations have been used to determine these
provisions. Undetlying these computations are a number of explicit or implicit assumptions relating to the expected
settlement amount and settlement patterns of claims. Since the determination of such a provision requires the expertise
of an external valuation expett who incorporates significant assumptions, judgements and estimations, the valuation
of these liabilities was significant to our audit.

Our audit procedures, among othets, included:

We assessed management’s calculations of the insurance contract liabilities by petforming the following procedutes:
® We understood the governance process in place to determine the insurance contract liabilites;
e We tested the undetlying Company data to soutce documentation;

® We applied our industty knowledge and experience and we compared the methodology, models and assumptions used
against recognized actuarial practices;

® We assessed the competence, capabilities, and objectivity of the management actuatial specialist;

e We reperformed computations on selected classes of business, patticulatly focusing on the latgest and most uncertain
teserves then re-computed claims resetves to those booked by management, and sought to understand any significant
differences;

® For the remaining classes we evaluated the methodology and assumptions, or performed a diagnostic check to identify
and follow up any anomalies;

® We involved our own actuarial specialist to assist us in performing our procedures in this area; and

® We checked the apptopriateness of the disclosutes made in telation to the valuation of insurance contract liabilities
included in the financial statements.

ii) Provision for doubtful debts on insurance and reinsurance receivables

As disclosed in note 16 to the financial statements, the Company’s insurance and reinsurance receivables amounted to
AED 334.6 million at 31 December 2022 (2021: AED 352.8 million) and the related provision for impairment
amounted to AED 64 million (2021: AED 61 million) as at that date.
We consider the caleulation of provision for doubtful debts on insurance and reinsurance receivables as a key audit
matter because of the significance of the insurance and reinsurance receivables balance (representing 18% of the total
assets as at 31 December 2022), the related estimation uncertainty of provision for doubtful debts to the financial
statements and the significance of the judgements used in applying the requitements of IAS 39 to the assessment of
the adequacy of provision for doubtful debits.
As part of our audit procedures, we:

e obtained and tested the reliability of the aging teport for the insurance and reinsurance receivable balances and

performed the following;

- verified the historical provision for bad debts to actual write offs;

- considered adequacy of doubtful debts provision for significant customers by taking into account
specific credit risk assessments for each customer based on days past due, the existence of any disputes
over the balance outstanding, the history of settlement of receivables and the existence of any liabilities
with the same counterparties which reduce the net exposure; and
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C (continued)
Key audit matters (continued)

ii) Provision for doubtful debts on insurance and reinsurance receivables (continued)

- discussed with management and teviewed correspondence, where relevant, to identify any disputes
and assess whether the bad debt provisions are appropriately assessed.
® reviewed the Company’s provisioning policy and ensured it is consistently applied.
® checked the approptiateness of the disclosutes made in relation to the provision for doubtful debts of
insurance and teinsurance receivables in the financial statements.

Other matter

The financial statements of the company for the yeat ended 31 December 2021 were audited by another auditor who
expressed unmodified audit opinion on those financial statements on 28 Match 2022.

Other information

The Board of Directors and management is responsible for the othet information. The other information comprises
the annual report of the Company. We have obtained the Ditectors’ report, prior to the date of this auditor’s report
and the remaining of the annual report is expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not exptess any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is matetially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditot’s report, we conclude that there
is 2 material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

When we read the Company’s Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take approptiate actions in accordance
with ISAs.

Responsibilities of the Management and the Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and their preparation in compliance with the applicable provisions of the UAE
Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, and UAE Federal law No. 6 of 2007 (as amended), and fot such internal control as
management determines is necessaty to enable the preparation of financial statements that are ftee from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud ot ettor.

In prepating the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters telated to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease opetations, ot has no realistic altetnative but to do so.

Those charged with governance ate responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting ptocess.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Union Insutance Company P.J.S.C (continued)

Anditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives ate to obtain reasonable assutance about whethet the financial statements as a whole ate free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditot’s repost that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is 2 high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or etror and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could teasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As patt of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

¢  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud ot errot,
design and perform audit procedutes responsive to those tisks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
approptiate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from ettor, as fraud may involve collusion, forgety, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of intetnal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in otder to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the putpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

®  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

¢  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concetn basis of accounting and based on
the audit evidenced obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosure are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structute and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 2 manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate to those chatged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intetnal control that we identify during
out audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requitements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the mattets communicated to those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
desctibe these matters in our auditot’s report unless law and regulations preclude public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Union Insutance Company P.J.S.C (continued)

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Furthet, as tequired by the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, we report that:

)

ii)

vi)

vii)

We have obtained all the information we consideted necessaty for the purposes of our audit;

The financial statements have been prepated and comply, in all material respects, with the applicable provisions of
the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021;

The Company has maintained propet books of account;
the finandial information included in the Directots’ report is consistent with the books of account of the Company;

Note 6 to the financial statements discloses investment in securities by the Company during the financial yeat ended
31 December 2022;

Note 11 to the financial statements discloses material related party transactions and balances, and the terms under
which they were conducted; and

based on the information that has been made available to us nothing has come to out attention which causes us to
believe that the Company has, duting the financial year ended 31 December 2022, contravened any of the applicable
provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, or, its Articles of Association, which would materially affect
its activities ot its financial position as at 31 December 2022; and

vil{) The Company did not make any social conttibution during the yeat ended 31 December 2022.

Further, as required by the U.A.E. Fedetal Law No. 6 of 2007 (as amended) and the related Financial Regulations for
Insurance Companies, we report that we have obtained all the information and explanations we considered necessary

for the purpose of our audit.

—
P.O.‘Box: 1968
Grant Thornton \ Sharjah - UAE.
Farouk Mohamed oy CRANT TRORNTON
Registration No: 86 4 urting Limited (Shat
Shartjah, 20 March 2023 =




Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Statement of financial position

As at 31 December 2022

Notes 2022 2021

AED’000 AED’000

ASSETS
Property and equipment 5 66,929 70,446
Intangible assets 17 8,723 14,574
Statutory deposit 7 10,000 10,000
Right-of-use assets 221 6,861 637
Unit linked assets 6.3 349,613 368,887
Investment sccuritics 6 76,779 47,888
Reinsurance contract assets 14 753,776 831,514
Bank deposits with original maturities of more than three
months 8.2 68,888 205,965
Insurance and other receivables 16 338,607 356,202
Cash and cash equivalents 8.1 205,667 91,881
TOTAL ASSETS 1,885,843 1,997,994
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capiral 9 330,939 330,939
Statutory reserve 10.1 18,020 16,187
Special reserve 10.2 18,020 16,187
Fair value reserve 10.3 166 136
Reinsurance reserve 10.4 7,406 4,885
Accumulated losses (120,728) (132,869)
Total Equity 253,823 235,485
Liabilities
Provision for employees’ end of service indemnity 23 14,424 12,873
Insurance contract liabilities 14 1,008,371 1,105,249
Insurance and other payables 18 259,612 275,500
Payables to policyholders of unit-linked products 13 349,613 368,887
Total liabilities 1,632,020 1,762,509
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,885,843 1,997,994

These financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Ditectors on 20 March 2023 and signed

on their behalf by:

‘;':—:"'!“M

Nassct Rashid Abdulaziz Almolla
Chairman

Abdcl Mutaleb M IT M Aljacde
Chief Executive Officer

The accompanying notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Statement of income
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Gross written premiums
Reinsurance premiums ceded

Net retained premiums

Net change in unearned premiums, mathematical reserve and

policyholders’ reserve

Net eatned premium

Gross commission earned

Total underwriting income

UNDERWRITING EXPENSES

Gross claims incutred
Insurance claims tecovered from reinsurets

Net claims incurred
Commission incutred
Administrative expenses

Other operational costs related to underwriting activities

Total underwriting expenses

UNDERWRITING PROFIT

Interest income

Other investment loss

Net investment income
Provision for doubtful debts
Boatd of directors’ fees
Profit for the year

Basic and diluted earnings per share

Notes

21
21

14.1
141
14.1
16.2
19
193

20
20

20
16.1
11

24

2022 2021
AED’000 AED’000
868,317 900,083
(504,146) (523,839)
364,171 376,244
(46,798) (76,571)
317,373 299,673
72,406 92,014
389,779 391,687
(419,777) (685,140)
269,668 533,257
(150,109) (151,883)
(82,706) (91,062)
(91,061) (90,884)
(48,937) (38,406)
(372,813) (372,235)
16,966 19,452
6,149 6,530
(155) (1,101)
5,994 5,429
(2,977) (10,062)
(1,655) (1,600)
18,328 13219
0.055 0.040

The accompanying notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

ITtems that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss

Change in fair value of investments held at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

2022 2021
AED’000 AED’000
18,328 13,219

10 222

10 222

18,338 13,441

The accompanying notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment and intangible assets
Depteciation on tight-of-use assets

Realised gain on disposal of investments at FVIPL
Untealised loss on investments at FVIPL

Provision fot doubtful debts

Wortl in progress written off

Interest income

Dividend income

Gain on sale of property and equipment

Interest on lease liabilites

Provision for employees’ end of service benefits
Operating cash flows before changes in working capital
Change in :

Reinsurance contract assets

Insurance and other receivables

Insurance contract liabilities

Insurance and other payables

Unit linked assets

Unit linked liabilities

Cash generated from operating activities

Employees’ end of service indemnity paid

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment and intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment

Purchase of investments held at FVTPL (excluding unit linked assets)

Proceeds from disposal of investments held at FVTPL (excluding unit linked
assets)

Proceeds from disposal of investments held at FVTOCI

Interest received

Dividends teceived

Maturities of fixed deposits with banks with otiginal matutities greater than
three months

Net cash generated from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Payment of lease liabilities
Net cash used in financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Non cash transactions

Rights of use asset

Lease liability

Transfer from CWIP to property and equipment and intangible assets
Transfer to property and equipment and intangible assets from CWIP

Notes

221
20
20

16.1
5.2
20
20

22.2
23

23

6.5
6.5
6.5

222

8.1
8.1

The accompanying notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2022 2021
AED000  AED000
18,328 13,219
8,460 7,906
3,016 2,962
(3,173) 2,917)
5,289 978
2,977 10,062
2,134 2,387
(6,149) (6,530)
(3,018) (527)
(1) @7)
413 110
2,885 3,081
31,161 30,704
77,738 (343,249)
14,618 27,856
(96,878) 364,832
(22,111)  (83,317)
(19,274)  (82,089)
19,274 82,089
3,928 (3,174)
(1,334) (1,170)
2,594 (4,344)
(1,228) (1,990)
3 27
(67,165) (8,490)
36,168 76,319
- 7,092
6,149 5,701
3,018 527
137,077 15,207
114,022 94,393
(2,830) (2,726)
(2,830) (2,726)
113,786 87,323
91,881 4,558
205,667 91,881
9,240 4,066
(9,240) (4,027)
1,516 5,032
(1,516) (5,032)
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

1 General information

Union Insurance Company P.J.S8.C. (the "Company") is incotporated as a public shareholding company and operates
in the United Arab Emirates (“UAE”) under a trade license issued by the Government of Dubai. The Company is
registered under the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, relating to commetcial companies. The Company is subject
to the regulations of U.A.E. Federal Law No. 6 of 2007, as amended, concetning establishment of the Insurance
Authority and Organisation of its Operations, and is registered with the Insurance Companies Register of the Central
Bank of the UAE (“CBUAE”) under registration number 67. The Company's registered corporate office is at Single
Business Tower, Sheikh Zayed Road, P.O. Box 119227, Dubai, United Arab Emirates ("UAE"). The Company’s
ordinary shares ate listed on the Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange (“ADX”).

The principal activity of the Company is the writing of insurance of all types including life assurance. The Company
operates through its Head Office in Dubai and Branch Offices in Abu Dhabi, Dubai, Sharjah, Ajman, and Ras Al
Khaimah.

Federal Law No. 32 of 2021 on Commetcial Companies (the “New Companies Law’) was issued on 20 September
2021 with an effective date of 2 January 2022, and will entirely replace Federal Law No. 2 of 2015, as amended, on
Commetcial Companies, as amended. The Company has twelve months from the effective date to comply with the
provisions of the New Companies Law. The Company is currently in the process of amending the statutory
documents, to reflect the changes required due to application of the UAE Federal law No. (32) of 2021.

On 9 December 2022, the UAE Ministry of Finance teleased the Federal Law No. 47 of 2022 on thé Taxation of
Corporations and Businesses (the Law) to enact a Federal corporate tax (CT) regime in the UAE. The CT regime
will become effective fot accounting periods beginning on or after 1 June 2023. The of the Company are currently
in the process of amending the statutory documents, to reflect the changes required due to application of the UAE
Federal law No. (32) of 2021.

A rate of 9% will apply to taxable income exceeding a particular threshold to be prescribed by way of a Cabinet
Decision (expected to be AED 375,000 based on information released by the Ministry of Finance), a rate of 0% will
apply to taxable income not exceeding this threshold and a rate of 0% on qualifying income of free zone entities.

2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS")
2.1 Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are effective from 1
January 2022

Following relevant new amendments to existing standards wete issued by the IASB, which are effective for the annual
petiod beginning on or after 1 January 2022 do not have a significant impact on the Company’s financial results or
position include:

. Reference to the Conceptual Framewotk (Amendments to IFRS 3)

. COVID-19 — Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 (Amendments to IFRS 16)
. Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds Before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16)
. Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37)

. Annual Improvements (2018-2020 Cycle):

- Subsidiaty as a Fitst-time Adopter (Amendments to IFRS 1)

- Fees in the ‘10 per cent’ Test for Derecognition of Liabilities (Amendments to IFRS 9)
- Lease Incentives (Amendments to IFRS 16)

- Taxation in Fair Value Measurements (Amendments to TAS 41).

This amendment did not have a significant impact on these financial statements.
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Union Insurance Company P.]J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2. Application of new and revised Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)
(Continued)

2.2 Standards issued but not yet effective

‘The IASB has issued the following standards or amended standards and intetpretations which apply from the dates
shown. The Company has decided not to eatly adopt any of these standards, amendments or interpretations where this
is permitted.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (1 January 2023)

Under IFRS 9, all financial assets will be measured either at amortised cost ot fair value and the basis of classification
will depend on the business model and the contractual cash flow charactetistics of the financial assets. In relation to the
impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires the use of an expected credit loss model, as opposed to the incurred
credit loss model required under IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The expected credit
loss model will require the Company to account for expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial tecagnition.

The Company has taken advantage of the temporary exemption granted to insurers in IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
from applying IFRS 9 until 1 January 2023 as a result of meeting the exemption criteria.

IFRS 9 will be implemented at the same time as the new insurance contracts standard (IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts)
effective from 1 January 2023. Duting the year, the Company continued its implementation activities in respect of IFRS
9 and expects to continue to value the majotity of its financial assets at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition, eithet as a result of these financial assets being managed on a fair value basis or as a result of using the fair
value option to itrevocably designate the assets at fair value through profit or loss. A number of additional disclosures
will be required by IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures as a result of implementing IFRS 9.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (1 January 2023)

Once effective IFRS 17 will replace IFRS 4 the current insurance contracts standard and it is expected to significantly
change the way the Company measures and reports its insurance contracts. The overall objective of the new standard
is to provide an accounting model for insurance conttacts that is more useful and consistent for users. IFRS 17
applies to insurance contracts (including reinsurance contracts) an entity issues, reinsurance contracts an entity holds
and investment contracts with discretionary participation features an entity issues.

The scope of IFRS 17 for the Company is materially consistent with that of IFRS 4. Investment contracts will be
measuted under IFRS 9. IFRS 17 requires that contracts ate divided into groups for the purposes of recognition
and measurement. Portfolios of contracts are identified by grouping together contracts which have similar dsks and
are managed together. These groups ate then further divided into groups based on their expected profitability.

Contracts which are onerous at inception cannot be grouped with contracts which are profitable at inception.
Contracts which are issued more than one year apatt are not permitted to be included within the same group,
although thete is some relief from this requirement for business in-force at the date of transition under the
transitional arrangements.

The standard introduces three measurement apptroaches, the general model measurement ({GMD), the variable fee
approach (VFA’) and the premium allocation approach (PAA’), all of which are applicable to the Company’s
business. The main features of these models are the measurement of an insurance contract as the present value of
expected future cash flows including acquisition costs, plus an explicit risk adjustment, remeasured at each reporting
period using current assumptions, and a contractual service margin (‘CSM).

The risk adjustment represents the compensation the Company requires for beating the uncertainty about the
amount and timing of cash flows that atise from non-financial risk as the obligations under the insurance contract

are fulfilled.
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Union Insurance Company P.]J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)
(Continued)

2.2 Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (1 January 2023) (continued)

The CSM represents the uneatned profit of a group of insurance contracts and is recognised in profit or loss as the
insurance service is provided to the customer using coverage units. Coverage units are a measurement of the quantum
of service provided across the life of the contract and ate used to measure the service provided in the reporting period
and release a corresponding amount of profit to the income statement. If a group of contracts becomes loss-making
aftet inception, the loss is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Under the general model the CSM is adjusted for non-economic assumption changes relating to future periods. For
certain contracts with participating features the vatiable fee approach is applied, this allows changes in economic
assumptions and expetience to adjust the CSM as well as non-economic assumptions, reflecting the vatiable nature of
the entity’s eatnings dtiven by investment returns.

IFRS 17 requires the standard to be applied retrospectively. Where this is assessed as impracticable the standard allows
the application of a modified retrospective approach or a fair value approach to determine the contractual setvice
matgin. The measurement principles set out in IFRS 17 will significantly change the way in which the Company
measures its insurance contracts and investment contracts with discretionary participation features (DPF’), and
associated reinsurance contracts.

'These changes will impact the pattern in which profit emesges when compared to IFRS 4 and add complexity to
valuation processes, data requitements and assumption setting. The introduction of IFRS 17 will simplify the
ptesentaton of the statement of financial position. It requires the presentation of groups of insurance (or reinsurance)
contracts that are in an asset position separately from those in a liability position. The presentation of the income
statement will change more significantly with IFRS 17 setting out how components of the profitability of contracts are
disaggregated into an insurance setvice result and insurance finance income/expenses. IFRS 17 also requires extensive
disclosures on the amounts recognised from insurance contracts and the nature and extent of risks arising from them.

Ptemium allocation approach: The Premium allocation approach is an optional simplified measurement model in IFRS
17 that is available for insurance and teinsurance contracts that meer the eligibility critetia.

The Company expects that it will apply the PAA to most contracts in the Non-life segment because the following
ctiteria are expected to be met at inception.

Insurance contracts and loss-occutring reinsurance contracts: The coverage petiod of each contract in the group is one
year or less.

Risk-attaching reinsurance contracts: The Company reasonably expects that the resulting measurement of the asset for
remaining coverage would not differ materially from the result of applying the accounting policies described above.

Under IFRS 17, the measurement of a group of contracts includes all of the future cash flows within the boundary of
each contract in the group. Compated with the cutrent accounting, the Company expects that for certain contracts the
IFRS 17 contract boundarty requitements will change the scope of cash flows to be included in the measurement of
existing recognised contracts, as opposed to future unrecognised contracts. The period covered by the premiums within
the contract boundary is the ‘coverage petiod’, which is relevant when applying a number of requirements in IFRS 17.

Insurance acquisition cash flows arise from the activities of selling, underwriting and starting a group of contracts that
are directly attributable to the portfolio of contracts to which the group belongs. Under IFRS 17, for Life contracts,
insurance acquisition cash flows are allocated to groups of contracts using systematic and rational methods based on
the total premiums for each group.

Under IFRS 17, only insurance acquisition cash flows that arise before the recognition of the related insurance contracts
are recognised as separate assets and tested for recoverability, whereas other insurance acquisition cash flows are
included in the estimates of the present value of futute cash flows as patt of the measurement of the related insurance
contracts.
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Union Insurance Company P.].S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)
(Continued)

22 Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (1 January 2023) (continued)

Impact assessment — Life Insurance

Under IFRS 17, all profits will be recognised in profit or loss over the lifetime of the contracts, and this will primarily
be dtiven by the timing of the recognition in profit or loss of the CSM as services are provided and the risk adjustment
for non-financial risk as the related risk expires. The Company expects that, even though the total profit recognised
ovet the lifetime of the contracts will not change, it will emerge mote slowly under IFRS 17. This is mainly because, for
certain Life contracts, all profits are currently recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of the contracts. The
different timing of profit recognition will result in an increase in liabilities on adoption of IFRS 17 because a pottion of
profits previously recognised and accumulated in equity under IFRS 4 will be included in the measurement of the
liabilities under IFRS 17.

The changes in the liabilities for Life contracts on transition to IFRS 17 can mainly be attributed to the following;

Changes from IFRS 4 Impact on equity on
transition to IFRS 17

The estimates of the present value of future cash flows will increase as a result Decrease
inclusion of all discretionary benefits in the estimates of the future cash flows in
measuting the liabilities for investment contracts with DPF a reduction in the
discount rates because of the IFRS 17 requirements to measure future cash flows
using current discount rates.

The risk adjustment for non-financial risk under IFRS 17 will be lower than the risk Inctease
matgin under IFRS 4 as a result of (a) recalibration of the measurement techniques
to conform with the IFRS 17 requirements, (b) exclusion of financial risk and general
operational risk from the IFRS 17 tisk adjustment for non-financial tisk and (c)
consideration of diversification benefit between Company entities.

A CSM, determined using the transition approaches, will be recognised for the Decrease
unearned profit for these contracts.

Impact assessment — Non-Life Insurance

Although the PAA is similar to the Company’s cutrent accounting treatment when measuring liabilities for remaining
coverage, the following changes are expected in the accounting for Non-life contracts.

Changes from IFRS 4 Impact on equity on
transition to IFRS 17
Undet IFRS 17, the Company will discount the future cash flows when measuring Increase

liabilities for incurred claims, unless they are expected to occur in one year or less
from the date on which the claims are incurred. The Company does not currently
1 discount such future cash flows.

IFRS 17 requites the fulfilment cash flows to include a risk adjustment for non- Decrease
financial risk. This is not explicitly allowed for currently.
The Company’s accounting policy under IFRS 17 to expense eligible insurance Decrease

acquisition cash flows when they are incurred differs from the cutrent practice
under which these amounts are recognised separately as deferred acquisition costs.
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2. Application of new and revised Intetnational Financial Reposting Standards (“IFRS”)
22 Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (1 January 2023) (continued)

The Company’s implementation project continued through 2022 with a focus on finalising methodologies and
developing the operational capabilities required to implement the standard including data, systems and business
processes. The cutrent focus is on embedding the operational capabilities and determining the transition of financial
position and comparatives required for 2023 reporting.

Since the implementation project is currently ongoing, management believes that it is impractical to determine the
amount of the effect of IFRS 17 in the current period.

Other Standards and amendments that are not yet effective and have not been adopted early by the Company
include:

e (lassification of Liabilities as Current or Non-cutrent (Amendments to IAS 1)

e Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2)

¢ Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments

to TAS 12)
e Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1)
® Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8)

These standards, amendments and interpretations are not expected to have a significant impact on the financial
staterents in the period of initial application.

3. Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are summarised below.
These policies have been consistently applied to each of the years presented.

31 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
and applicable requirements of Federal Law No. 6 of 2007 (as amended), Concerning the Establishment of the
Insurance Authotity & Organization of the Insurance Operations, the Federal Law No. (32) of 2021 Concerning
commercial companies and Insurance Authority Board Decision No. (23) of 2019 Concerning Instruction
Organizing Reinsurance Operations.

3.2 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepatred on the historical cost basis except for investment properties and financial
instruments that have been measured at revalued amounts, amortised cost or fair value as explained in the accounting
policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.
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Union Insurance Company P.].S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

33 Insurance contracts

3.3.1 Product classification

The Company issues contracts that transfer insurance risk or financial risk or both. Insurance contracts are those
contracts when the Company (the insuret) has accepted significant insurance tisk from another party (the
policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified uncertain future event (the insuted event)
adversely affects the policyholders. As a general guideline, the Company determines whether it has significant
insurance risk of at least 10%, by compating benefits paid with benefits payable if the insured event did not occut.

Some insurance and investment contracts contain discretionary patticipating features (DPF) which entitle the
contract holder to receive, as a supplement to the standard guaranteed benefits, additional benefits or bonuses:

= That are likely to be a significant portion of the total contractual benefits;
*  Whose amount or timing is contractually at the discretion of the insurer; and
*  That are contractually based on:

iy the performance of a specified pool of contracts or a specified type of contract;
(i) realised / unrealised investment returns on a specified pool of assets held by the issuer; or,
(iii) the profit ot loss of the Company, fund or other entity that issues that contract.

Under IFRS 4, DPF can be either treated as an element of equity or as a liability or can be split between the two
elements. The Company’s policy is to treat all DPF as a liability within insurance or investment contract liabilities.

The policyholder bears the financial risks relating to some insurance contracts or investment contracts. Such
products are usually unit-linked contracts.

3.3.2 Recognition and measurement

Insurance conttacts ate classified into three main categoties, depending on the duration of risk and whether or not
the terms and conditions are fixed.

(i) Shott-term insurance contracts

These contracts are medical, motor, property, matine, engineering, general accident as well as short-duration life
insurance contracts.

Short-duration life insutance contracts protect the Company’s customers from the consequences of events such as,
but not limited to, death or disability.
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Union Insurance Company P.].S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
33 Insurance contracts (continued)

3.3.2 Recognition and measurement (continued)
() Short-term insurance contracts (continued)

In tespect of short term insurance contracts, premium ate recognised as revenue (earned premiums) proportionately
ovet the period of coverage with the exception of marine catgo, where it is assumed that each policy is earned fully
in the quatter following the quarter in which it was written; hence the unearned premium reserve (“UPR”) at the
end of a patticulat quarter will be equal to the written premium in that quarter and engineering where UPR is
calculated on increasing risk basis as required in the Financial Regulations issued by the CBUAE (formetly, the IA).
The portion of the premium received in respect of in-force contracts that relates to unexpired risks at the end of the
reporting period is reported as the unearned premium liability. Premiums are shown before deduction of the
commission.

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are chatged to the statement of income as incurred based on the estimated
liability for compensation owed to contract holders ot third parties damaged by the contract holders. They include
direct claims settlement costs which arise from events that have occurred up to the end of the reporting period even
if they have not been reported to the Company. The Company does not discount its liabilities for unpaid claims.
Liabilities for unpaid claims ate estimated using the input of assessments for individual cases reported to the
Company and statistical analyses for the claims incurred but not reported, and to estimate the expected ultimate cost
of more complex claims that may be affected by external factors (such as court decisions). Insurance contract
liabilities also include teinsutance shate of third party recoveties that are outstanding but not yet confirmed for the
by the respective insurance companies against the recoveries of claims that were already received by the Company.
Once the third party recoveries are confirmed, they are reclassified to “Due to reinsurance companies™ within
“Insurance and other payables” on the statement of statement of financial position.

Unallocated loss adjustment expense resetves cotrespond to the provision representing future claim expenses and
related handling costs that are not specific to a claim. It represents all other expenses and costs that are related to
the adjudication of claims but cannot be assigned to a specific claim.

(i) Long-tetm insurance contracts with fixed and guaranteed terms

The Company writes long-term term assurance policies, where a single ot regular premium is paid by the policyholder
in exchange for a fixed death benefit paid on death before the end of the term of the policy.

The Company also wtites long term credit life policies, whete a single or monthly premium is paid by the policyholder
in exchange for a death benefit, linked to a specified loan or mortgage, paid on death before the end of the term of
the policy.

Premiums are recognised as revenue when they becorme payable by the contract holder. Premiums are shown before
deduction of commission. Claims are recorded as an expense when they are incurred.

A liability for contractual benefits that are expected to be incurred in the future is recorded when the premiums are
recognised. The liability is based on assumptions such as mortality and investment performance. A conservative
approach is used to determine the assumptions so as to ensure adequate margin in the results.

Where insurance contracts have a single premium or a limited number of premium payments due over a significantly
shorter period than the petiod during which benefits are provided, the excess of the premiums payable over the
valuation premiums is deferted and recognised as income in line with the decrease of unexpired insurance risk of
the contracts in force or, for annuities in force, in line with the decrease of the amount of future benefits expected
to be paid. The liabilities are recalculated at each end of the reporting period using the assumptions established at
inception of the contracts.
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Union Insurance Company P.]J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
33 Insurance contracts (continued)

3.3.2 Recognition and measurement (continued)
(i) Long-term unit linked insurance contracts

The Company writes long term unit-linked term assurance and whole of life policies, where tegular policyholder
premiums are invested into funds selected by the policyholder, in return for a death, maturity or surrender benefit
payable to the policyholder.

The benefits payable to the policyholder may be a fixed sum assured, or an amount based on the value of the
policyholdet’s unit fund, depending on the product type chosen by them. Liabilities are set equal to the policyholders’
account value in addition to liabilities calculated against the insurance tisk embedded in the products and recorded
as “Payables to policyholders’ of unit linked products™ in the statement of financial position. These account values
are affected by factors including but not limited to: payment of policy premiums, changes in the unit prices, policy
administration fees, mortality charges, surrender charges and any withdrawals.

The liability for these contracts includes any amounts necessaty to compensate the Company for services to be
performed over future petiods. This is the case for contracts where the policy administration charges are higher in
the initial years than in subsequent years. The mortality charges deducted in each period from the contract holders
ate considered adequate to cover the expected total death benefit claims in excess of the contract account balances
in each period; no additional liability is therefore established for these claims.

A unit-linked insurance conttact is an insurance contract with an embedded derivative linking payments on the
contract to units of investments. This embedded derivative meets the definition of an insurance contzact and is not
therefore accounted for separately from the host insurance contract. The liability for such contracts is adjusted for
all changes in the fair value of the underlying assets.

(@) Deferred policy acquisition costs (DAC)

Commissions and other acquisiion costs that vaty with and are related to securing new contracts and renewing
existing contracts are capitalised as an intangible asset (DAC). All other costs are recognised as expenses, when
incutred. The DAC is subsequently amortised over the life of the contract.

(b) Liability adeguacy test

At the end of the reporting period, liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of the contract
liabilities net of related DAC. In petforming these tests, cutrent best estimates of future contractual cash flows,
claims handling, administration expenses and other associated expenses, as well as investment income from the assets
backing such liabilities, ate used. Any deficiency is immediately charged to the statement of income by establishing
a provision for losses atising from liability adequacy tests (“the unexpired risk provisions™).

(¢} Reinsurance contracts held

Contracts enteted into by the Company with reinsurers under which the Company is compensated for losses on one
ot more contracts issued by the Company and that meet the classification requirements for insurance contracts are
classified as reinsurance contracts held. Contracts that do not meet these classification requirements are classified as
financial assets. Insurance contracts entered into by the Company under which the contract holder is another insurer
(inwards reinsurance) are included with insurance conttacts. The benefits to which the Company is entitled under its
reinsurance contracts held are recognised as reinsurance assets.
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
33 Insurance contracts (continued)

3.3.2 Recognition and measurement (continued)
(c) Reinsnrance contracts held (continsed)

These assets consist of short-term balances due from teinsuters, as well as longer term receivables that are dependent
on the expected claims and benefits atising under the related reinsured insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable
from or due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the amounts associated with the reinsured insurance
contracts and in accordance with the terms of each teinsurance contract. Reinsurance liabilities are primarily
premiums payable for reinsurance contracts and are recognised as an expense when due.

The Company assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on a quarterly basis. If there is objective evidence that
the reinsurance asset is impaited, the Company reduces the cartying amount of the reinsurance asset to its recoverable
amount and recognises that impaitment loss in the income statement. The Company gathers the objective evidence
that a reinsurance asset is impaitred using the same process adopted for insurance receivables. The impairment loss
is calculated following the same method used for these financial assets.

The Company also assumes reinsurance sk in the normal course of business for life insurance and general insurance
contracts where applicable. Premium and claims on assumed reinsurance contracts are recognised as revenue ot
expenses in the same manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct business, taking into account

the product classification of the reinsured business.

Reinsurance assets also include thitd party recoveries that are outstanding but not yet confirmed by the respective
insurance companies against the claims that were already paid by the Company. Once the third party recoveties are
confirmed, they are reclassified to “Due from insurance companies” within “Insurance and other receivables” on
the statement of financial position.

(d) Salvage and subrogation reimbnrsements

Some insurance contracts permit the Company to sell (usually damaged) property acquired in settling a claim (for
example, salvage). The Company may also have the right to pursue third parties for payment of some or all costs
(for example, subrogation).

Estimates of salvage recoveties ate included as an allowance in the measurement of the insurance liability for claims,
and salvage property is recognised in other assets when the liability is settled. The allowance is the amount that can
reasonably be tecovered from the disposal of the asset.

Subrogation reimbursements are also considered as an allowance in the measurement of the insurance liability for
claims and ate recognised in other assets when the liability is settled. The allowance is the assessment of the amount
that can be tecoveted from the action against the liable third party.

(¢) Provision jor defanlt claims and refunds

The Company recorded the provision for default claims and refunds relating to credit life insurance policies within
Insurance contract liabilities. This provision is for the additional benefits covered in the specific credit life policies
towards skip and disappearance of the customers.
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
3.4  Revenue recognition
(@) Interest incomse

Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financial instruments is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial instrument, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (or stage 3), for which interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to their amortised cost (i.e. net of the expected credit loss provision) and are recognised within
‘interest income” in the statement of income.

(6) Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised in the statement of income when the Company’s right to receive
dividend has been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

(¢} Reinsurance commeission earned
Commissions earned ate recognised fully at the time the related insurance contracts are written,

3.5  Foreign currencies
3.5.1 Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The Company’s financial
statements are presented in Arab Emirates Ditham (“AED”), which is the Company’s functional and presentation
cutrency.

3.5.2 Transactions and balances

Foreign curtency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions, and from
the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates,
are generally recognised in the statement of income. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
statement of income, within “Administrative expenses”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value
are teported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of
the fair value gain ot loss, and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equities classified as at fair
value through other comprehensive income are recognised in statement of other comprehensive income.

3.6 Segment reporting

For management purposes, the Company is organised into two business segments based on their products and
setvices and has two business segments as follows:

(2) The general insurance segment comptises of propetty, fire, marine, motor, medical, general accident and
miscellaneous risks.

(b) The life assurance segment offers short term and long term life insurance. Revenue from this segment is
detived primarily from insurance premium, fees and commission income, investment income and fair value
gains and losses on investments.
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
3.6 Segment reporting (continued)

No operating segments have been aggtegated to form the above reportable operating segments. Segment
petformance is evaluated based on profit ot loss which, in certain respects, is measured differently from profit or
loss in the financial statements. No inter-segment transactions occurred during the year ended 31 December 2022
and 2021. If any transaction were to occur, transfer prices between operating segments would be set on an arm’s
length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties.

Opetating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker.

The two operating segments i.e General Insurance and Life Insurance segments, oraganised under two Presidents
who report into the Chief Executive Officet. The Board and its vatious committes have oversight on the overall
operations of the company.

3.7 Property and equipment

Property and equipment comptises of freehold land, furniture and fixture, office equipment, motor vehicles,
computer equipment and capital work in progress.

Property and equipment is catried at historical cost, less accumulated depteciation any recognised impairment
loss. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. These assets
are classified to the appropdate categories of property and equipment when completed and ready for their
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property and equipment, commences when
the assets ate ready for their intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s catrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured teliably. The catrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of income
during the reporting petiod in which they are incurred.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Capital wotk in progtess is stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. The cost includes the cost of
construction and other telated expenditure which are capitalised as and when activities that are necessary to get
the assets teady for use are in progress. Net realisable value represents the estimated recoverable value based on
expected future usage. Management reviews the carrying values of the capital wortk in progress on an annual basis.

Capital work in progress ate considered to be completed when all related activities, for the entite assets have been
completed. Upon completion, those ate transferred to property and equipment.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the catrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement
of comptehensive income in the year the asset is derecognised.

Expenditute incurred to replace a component of an item of property and equipment that is accounted for
separately is capitalised and the carrying amount of the component that is replaced is written off. Other
subsequent expenditute is capitalised only when it increases future economic benefits of the related item of
propetty and equipment. All other expenditure is recognised in the statement of income as the expense is incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to wtite off the cost of assets, other than capital work in progtess, over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
3.7 Property and equipment (continued)

The useful life considered in calculation of depreciation for all the assets is as follows:
® Office Equipment & Computer Equipment - 5 yeats
®  Motor Vehicles - 4 years
® TFurnitute and Fixtures - 12 years

3.8 Intangible assets

Intangible assets including software and license fee for access to know how.

(a) Software

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.

Development costs that are directly atttributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software
products controlled by the Company are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

It is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;

Management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it;

There is an ability to use or sell the software product;

It can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic benefits;
Adequate technical, financial and other resoutces to complete the development and to use or sell the software
product are available; and

¢ The expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be reliably measured.

Ditectly attributable costs that ate capitalised as patt of the software product include the software development
employee costs and an appropriate pottion of directly attributable overheads.

The estimated useful life and amottisation method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. The useful lives considered in
the calculation of amortisation is 5 yeats.

(b) License know how

Licenses know how is shown at historical cost. It has a definite useful life and is carried at cost less accumulated
amottisation and impairment. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost license
over their estimated useful lives ie 5 yeats.

3.9 Leases

The Company leases office premises. Rental contract of the leases range from 1 to 3 years. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreement
does not impose any covenants, but leased assets cannot be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Leases ate recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability within “Insurance and other payables”
at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Company. Each lease payment is allocated between
the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to statement of income over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

The tight-of-use asset is depreciated over shorter of the asset’s useful life or the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease ate initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

® fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

® variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate,

e amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; and

® payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
3.9 Leases (continued)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability. The lease payments ate discounted using the intetest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
determined, the lessee’s incremental botrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to
botrow the funds necessaty to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar
terms and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comptising the following:

®  the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

® any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received,
® any initial direct costs; and

® restoration costs.

Initial direct costs incutred in obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying
asset and recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income.

Extension and termination options

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods
after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or
not terminated).

For buildings, the following factors are normally the most relevant.

e if there ate significant penalties to terminate (or not extend), the Company is typically reasonably certain to
extend (or not terminate);

e if any leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant remaining value, the Company is typically
reasonably certain to extend (ot not tetminate); and

® otherwise, the Company considers other factors including historical lease durations and the costs and business
disruption required to replace the leased asset.

The assessment is reviewed if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs which affects
this assessment and that is within the control of the lessee.

Termination option is included in the property lease of the Company. This option held is exercisable by the
Company and the lessor.

Payments associated with short-term leases of premises ate recognised on 2 straight-line basis as an expense in
statement of income. Short-term leases ate leases with a lease term of 12 months or less without a purchase

option.
3.10 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholdets is recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
311  Financial instruments
(a) Investments and other financial assets

(@) Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categoties:
® those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through OCI or through profit or loss), and
® those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows. For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in statement of
income or statement of other comprehensive income. For investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Company has made an itrevocable election at the time of initial
tecognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. The
Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

(i) Recognition and derecognition

All “regular way” purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the “trade date”, i.e. the date that the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that requite delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit or loss.
Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash
flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are two measurement categories into which the Company
classifies its debt instruments:

%+ Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is calculated using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in ‘Net investment income/ (loss)’ together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impaitment losses ate included within ‘Net investment income/(loss)” in the
statement of income.

% FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the critetia for amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVIPL. A gain
ot loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognised in the income statement
and is presented net within ‘Net investment income’ in the period in which it arises.

% TFVTOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows reptesent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCIL.
Movements in the catrying amount ate taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses, which are recognised in profit or loss. When
the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognised in ‘Net investment income’. Interest income from these financial
assets is calculated using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses ate presented
in ‘Net investment income’.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
311  Financial instruments (continued)

(iii) Measurement (continued)

Eguity investrments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at FVTIPL, except where the Company’s
management has elected, at initial recognition, to ittevocably designate an equity investment at FVTOCIL. The
Company’s policy is to designate equity investments at FVTOCI when those investments are held for purposes
other than to generate investment returns. When this election is used, fair value gains and losses are recognised
in OCI and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal. Dividends, when representing
a return on such investments, continue to be recognised in profit or loss as “Net investment income / (loss)”
when the Company’s tight to receive payments is established.

The unit-linked assets include investments held on behalf of policyholders of unit linked products, financial assets
from reinsurer towards policyholders of unit linked products contracts and cash held on behalf of policyholders,
Investments held on behalf of policyholders of unit linked products and financial assets from reinsuter towards
policyholders of unit linked products contracts ate accrued to the account of the contract holder at the fair value
of the net gains atising from the undetlying linked assets. All these contracts are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss and wete designated in this category upon initial recognition, Cash held on behalf of policyholders
are designated as amortised cost investment designated in this categoty upon initial recognition.

Inppairment and uncollectibility of finandal assets

The Company assesses the collectability of its financial assets based on its credit policy and default events. Refer
to (b) below for impairment of insurance and other teceivables.

(b) Insurance and other receivables

Insurance and other receivables ate recognised initally at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less impairment losses, if any. A provision for doubtful debts of receivables
is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the otiginal tetms of receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the
debtot will enter bankruptcy or financial reotganisation and default or delinquency in payments are considered
indicators that the receivable is impaired.

The carrying amount of the receivable is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the statement of income. When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for that receivable. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited in
the statement of income.

(¢) Financial lfiabilities

The Company recognises a financial liability when it first becomes a party to the contractual rights and
obligations in the contract,

All financial liabilides are initally recognised at fair value, minus (in the case of a financial liability that is not at
FVTPL) transaction costs that are directly attributable to issuing the financial liability. Financial liabilides are
measured at amortised cost, unless the Company opted to measure a liability at FVTPL.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Financial liabilities included in insurance and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently at amortised cost. ‘The fair value of a non-interest bearing liability is its discounted repayment
amount. If the due date of the liability is less than one year, discounting is omitted.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

311  Financial instruments (continued)

Offserting of financial assets and labilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, thete is a currenty enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, ot to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. Income and
expense will not be offset in the statement of income unless required or permitted by any accounting standard or
intetptetation, as specifically disclosed in the accounting policies of the Company.

(d) Cash and cash equivalents

Fot the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at
call with financial institutions, othet short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
ot less that are readily convettible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value less overdrafts with banks. Bank overdrafts are shown within liabilities in the statement of
financial position.

(2) Bank deposits with banfks with original matnrities of more than three months

Deposits held with banks with original maturides of more than three months are initially measured at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost.

312 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the highet of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU)
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
tecoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using discount
rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs to sell, an apptopriate valuation model is used.

These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples or other available fair value indicators. Impairment
losses ate tecognised in the statement of income.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether thete is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company makes an
estimate of the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the cartying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable
amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
amortisation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is tecognised in
the statement of income.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
313  Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of resoutces will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting petiod, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
cartying amount is the present value of those cash flows. When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

3.14 Employees’ end of service benefits
Provision f loyees’ f setvice benefits

The Company provides end of service benefits to its expatriate employees in accordance with the UAE Labor
Law.

The entitlement to these benefits is based upon the employees' salary and the length of service, subject to the
completion of a minimum service period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of

employment.

Defined contribution plan for UAE national employees

The Company is a member of the pension scheme operated by the Federal Pension General and Social Security
Authority. Contributions for eligible UAE. National employees are made and charged to the statement of income,
in accordance with the provisions of Federal Law No. 7 of 1999 relating to pension and Social Secutity Law. The
employees and the Government contribute 5% and 2.5% of the “contribution calculation salaty” respectively, to
the scheme. The only obligation of the Company with respect to the retirement pension and social security
scheme is to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to statement of income.

An accrual has been made for the past contributions relating to the services rendered by the eligible UAE National
employees up to 31 December 2022. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid.

3.15 Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements. They are disclosed unless the possibility of an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial
statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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3.16  Related parties
A related party is defined as follows:

a) A petson or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Company if that person:
P p y pany P
(i) Has control or joint control over the Company;
(i) Has significant influence over the Company; or
i) Is 2 member of the key management personnel of the Company ot of a parent of the Company.
Y ag P pany p p

(b) An entity is related to the Company if any of the following conditions applies:

() The entity and the Company ate members of the same Company (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiaty is related to the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate ot joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a Company of which the other entity is 2 membet).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Company or an entity
related to the Company. If the Company is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employets are also related to the
Company;

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a petson identified in (a);

(vii) A person identified in (2) (i) has significant influence over the entity or is 2 member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

3.17 Administration expenses

Direct expenses of general insurance business are charged to respective departmental revenue accounts and is charged
to statement of income.

3.18  Share capital

Shates ate classified as equity when there is no obligation to transfer cash or other assets. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of equity instruments ate shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds.

4, Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation of uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in note 3, management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the catrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other soutces. The estitnates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that ate
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and undetlying assumptions atre reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the petiod in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the petiod of the
revision and future petiods if the tevision affects both current and future periods. The sensitivities for life insurance
contracts ate disclosed in note 14.7 and fot general insurance contracts are disclosed in note 26.4.

Significant areas whete management has used estimates, assumptions or exercised judgements are as follows:
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4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation of uncertainty (continued)
4.1 The ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance contracts

Provision is made at the year-end for the estimated cost of claims incurred but not settled at the reporting date. The liability
for outstanding claims includes the cost of claims reported but yet to be paid, claims incurred but not repotted (“IBINR”),
and the estimated expenses to be incurred in settling claims.

The process of establishing liability estimates is subject to considerable variability as it requires the use of informed estimates
and judgments. These estimates and judgments atre based on numerous factors, and may be revised as additional expetience
becomes available or as tegulations change. The liability for outstanding claims is estimated using the input of assessment
for individual cases reported to the Company as well as assessments performed by external loss adjustors where deemed
necessary. Claims requiting court or atbitration decisions are estimated individually. The Company takes all reasonable
steps to ensute that it has approptiate information regarding the risk of major storm, tempest and flood scenarios that exist
in the UAE to estimate its claims exposures. However, given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is likely
that the final outcome will prove to be diffetent from the otiginal liability established.

The estimation of IBNR is genetally subject to a greater degtree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of settling
claims, where more information about the claim event is available. Classes of business which have a longer reporting tail
and where the IBNR proportion of the total reserve is therefore high will typically display greater variations between initial
estimates and final outcomes because of the greater degree of difficulty in estimating these liabilities. For the short-tailed
classes, claims are typically repotted soon after the claim event, and tend to display less variation. In calculating the required
levels of ptovisions, the Company’s internal and external independent actuary use a vatiety of estimation techniques,
generally based upon statistical analyses of histotical experience, which assumes that the development pattern of the current
claims will be consistent with past experience.

In arriving at booked claims provisions, management also make allowance for changes ot uncertainties which may create
distortions in the undetlying statistics or which might cause the cost of unsettled claims to increase or reduce when
compared with the cost of previously settled claims including:
® changes in patterns of claim incidence, repotting, processing, finalisation and payment;
® changes in the legal environment;
® the impact of inflation (both economic/ wage and supetimposed);
changes in the mix of business;
the impact of large losses;
the effects of inflation;
movements in industry benchmarks;
medical and technological developments;
changes in policyholder behaviour.

The methods used to analyse past claim experience and to project future claim experience are largely determined by the
available data and the nature of the portfolio. The projections given by the different methodologies assist in setting the
range of possible outcomes. The most appropriate estimation technique is selected taking into account the characteristics
of the business class and the extent of the development of each accident year.

Large claims impacting each relevant business class are generally assessed separately, being measured on a case by case basis
ot projected separately in order to allow for the possible distortive effect of the development and incidence of these large

claims.

Outstanding claims and claims incurred but not teported are calculated gross of reinsurance. A separate estimate is made
of the amounts recoverable from reinsurers and third parties under reinsurance contracts based on the gross provisions.
Future cash flows are not discounted for time value of money.
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4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation of uncertainty (continued)
4.2 Mathematical reserves

Liabilities pertaining to the long-term insurance contracts are determined based on standard actuatial principles. The liability
is determined based on the actuarial present value of future cashflows. These cashflows are based on factors, including but
not limited to; claims, expected future mortality and the structure of the product. Additional liabilities ate determined for
supplementary benefits attached to the base policy.

The Company bases the mortality and morbidity estimates on standard tables that best reflect historical expedence, adjusted
where appropriate to reflect the Company’s own expetience. A67 — 70 Ultimate Mortality Table of Assured Lives and a
discount rate of 3% ate used for the purpose of discounting the liabilities (31 December 2021: 1%).

4.3 Impairment of freehold land

At each reporting date or whenever a change in citcumstances occurs, both intetnal and external soutces of information
are considered to assess whether there is an indication that freehold land is impaired. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated using fair value less costs of disposal and/or value in use calculations as
appropriate, If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment charge is recognised to
reduce the asset to its recoverable amount. Such impairment charges are recognised in the statement of income.

4.4 Impairment of insurance receivables

The Company reviews its insurance receivables to assess impairment on a quattetly basis. In determining whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in the statement of income, the Company makes judgements as to whethet thete is
any observable data indicating that there is a measurable dectease in the estimated future cash flows from receivables. A
provision for doubtful debts of insurance receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will
not be able to collect all amounts due according to their original terms. (Refer to note 3.11(%)) Receivables atising from
teinsurance contracts ate also reviewed for impairment as part of the impairment review of receivables.
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

6. Investment securities and unit linked assets

Investment securities compsises the following:

As at 31 As at 31

December December

2022 2021

AED’000 AED’000

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (6.1) 76,752 47,871

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (6.2) 27 17

76,779 47,888

Ugit linked assets (6.3) 349,613 368,887
6.1 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

As at 31 Asat 31

December December

2022 2021

AED’000 AED’000

Quoted equity securities in U.AE. 61,953 19,668

Quoted equity securities outside U.A.E. 464 570

Quoted bonds in U.A.E. 11,971 16,450

Investment in funds outside U.A.E. - 7,364

Unquoted equity securities outside U AE. 327 426

Unquoted equity securities in U.A.E. 2,037 3,393

Fair value at the end of the year 76,752 47871

Investments classified at fair value through profit or loss are designated in this category upon initial recognition.

The bonds carty intetests at the rates of 2.09% to 5.87% (31 December 2021: 2.09% to 5.87%) per annum. The
bonds are redeemable at par from 2023 to 2026 (31 December 2021: 2022 to 2026) based on their maturity dates.
Thete ate no significant concentrations of credit tisk to a single counter party for debt instruments and the carrying
amount teflected above tepresents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit tisk for such assets.

6.2 Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income

As at 31 Asat 31

December December

2022 2021

AED000 AED'000

Quoted equity securities in U.A.E. 27 17
27 17

Investments classified at fair value through other comptehensive income are designated in this category upon initial
recognition.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company did not dispose any equity investments held at fair value
through other comprehensive income (31 December 2021: AED 7,092 thousand) in line with the Company’s
investment strategy. The Company tealised loss for the year ended 31 December 2021 is AED 11,208 thousand
which was transferred to accumulated losses.
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6. Investment securities and unit linked assets (continued)

6.3  Unit linked assets

As at Asat
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
AED000 AED’000
Investments held on behalf of policyholders of unit linked products carried
at FVTPL 215,180 231,059
Financial assets due from reinsurer towards policyholders of unit-linked
products carried at FVTPL 122,490 124,474
Cash held on behalf of policyholdets of unit linked products catried at
amortised cost ) 11,943 13,354
349,613 368,887

6.4 Investment Concentration

The CBUAE has set a maximum limit for aggregate exposure in vatious categories of investments. As at 31 December
2022, the Company was in compliance with this requirement. As at 31 December 2021, the Company had investments
more than the limits set in some categories, particulatly equity instruments within and outside the UAE, and deposits
and othet debt instruments.

6.5 Movement in the financial investrnents
FVTIPL FVTIOCI Total
AED’000 AED000 AED’000
At 1 January 2021 106,384 6,887 113,271
Purchases 8,490 - 8,490
Ttansfers 7,364 - 7,364
Disposals (69,294) (7,092) (76,386)
Matutrities (7,025) - (7,025)
Movement in accrued interest 13 - 13
Changes in fair value (978) (18) (996)
Realised gain 2,917 240 3,157
As at 31 December 2021 47,871 17 47,888
Purchases 67,165 - 67,165
Disposals (36,168) - (36,168)
Changes in fair value (5,289) 10 (5,279)
Realised gain 3,173 - 3,173
As at 31 December 2022 76,752 27 76,779
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7 Statutory deposit

The statutory deposit of AED 10 million (31 December 2021: AED 10 million) is required to be placed by insurance
companies operating in the U.A.E. with the designated national banks. This deposit has been pledged to the bank as
security against a guarantee issued by the bank in favour of the CBUAE for the same amount.

Statutory deposits, which depend on the nature of insurance activities, cannot be withdrawn except with the prior
approval of the CBUAE in accordance with Article 42 of Federal Law No. 6 of 2007, as amended and bear interest
rate of 1.5% per annum (31 December 2021: 0.6% and 0.68% pet annum).

8.  Cash and bank balances

8.1 Cash and cash equivalent

Asat Asat

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

AED’000 AED’000

Cash in hand 50 50
Bank balances:

Cutrent accounts with banks 30,789 91,831

Bank deposits with original maturities of three months ot less 174,828 -

Cash and cash equivalents for the putpose of the statement of cash flows 205,667 91,881

InUAE. 203,593 91,302

Qutside UAE 2,074 579

205,667 91,881

Bank deposits with otiginal matutities of three months or less as at 31 December 2022 carried interest rate ranging
between 4.05% to 5% pet annum (2021: 0.42%)
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8. Cash and bank balances (continued)
8.2 Bank deposits with original maturities of more than three months
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
AED’000 AED’000
Deposits with original maturities greater than three months 68,388 205,965
InUAE. 45,210 172,760
OQutside U.A.E. 23,678 33,205
68,888 205,965

Bank deposits catried interest tates ranging from 1.5% to 8% pet annum (31 December 2021: 0.15% to 8.5% per annum).

Bank deposits of AED 45 million (31 December 2021: AED 46.4 million) have been pledged as security against the credit
facility which is to manage the liquidity position.

The Company has obtained overdraft facilides from commercial banks in the UAE amounting to AED 25 million (31
December 2021: AED 28 million) which catry interest rate of 1% per annum above the highest interest rate payable on
fixed deposits under lien for the overdraft facility; or as varied by notice in writing received from the bank from time to
time. Unused credit faciliies amounted to AED 25 million (31 December 2021: AED 28 million).

9. Share capital
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
AED’000 AED’000
Issued and fully paid 330,939,180 shares of AED 1 each
(31 December 2021: 330,939,180 share of AED 1 each) 330,939 330,939

10. Reserves
Nature and purpose of reserves

10.1  Statutory reserve

In accordance with the UAE Commercial Companies Law and the Company’s Article of Association, the Company has
tesolved not to increase the statutory reserve above an amount equal to 50% of its paid up share capital. The Company
transfers 10% of the profits for each year to the statutory reserve. The Company transferred AED 1,833 thousand during
the year ended (31 December 2021: AED 1,322 thousand). The teserve is not available for distribution except in the
circumstances stipulated by the law.

10.2  Special reserve

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, the Board of Directors may transfer 10% of annual net profits,
if any, to a spedial teserve until an Ordinary General Meeting upon 2 proposal suspends it. The special reserve can be
utilised for the purposes determined by the Ordinary General Meeting upon recommendations of the Board of Directors.
The Company transferred AED 1,833 thousand during the year ended (31 December 2021: AED 1,322 thousand).

10.3 Fair value reserve

The fair value resetve comptises the cumulative net change in fair value of financial assets designated as fair value through
other comprehensive income.
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10. Reserves (continued)

10.4 Reinsurance reserve

In accordance with Article 34 of the Insurance Authority’s Board of Directors Decision No. (23) of 2019, the Company
has transferred AED 2,521 thousand from ‘Accumulated losses’ to the ‘Reinsurance reserve’ being 0.5% of the total
insurance premium ceded to reinsurers during the year ended 31 December 2022 (year ended 31 December 2021: AED
2,619 thousand). The Company shall accumulate such provision petiod on period and shall not dispose of the resetve
without the written approval of the assistant governor of the banking and insurance supervision department within the
CBUAE.

11. Related party balances and transactions

The Company, in the normal course of business, collects premiums, settles claims and enters into transactions with other
business enterprises that fall within the definition of a related party as defined by International Accounting Standard 24.
Related parties include the Company’s major Shareholders, Directots and businesses controlled by them and their families
over which they exercise significant management influence as well as key management personnel. The Company’s
management believes that the terms of such transactions are not significantly different from those that could have been
obtained from third parties.

At the end of the reporting year, amounts due from/ (to) related patties which are included in the respective account
balances are detailed below:

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
AED’000 AED’000
Balances with entities related to Board members
Gross outstanding claims (included in claims reported unsettled) 468 444
Fixed deposits 45,256 -
Bank account 3,537 -
Balances with former major shareholder
Premium receivables (Note 16) 26,603 26,508
Allowance for doubtful receivables (Note 16) (26,360) (26,310)
Net premium teceivables 243 198
Investment properties reclassified to “Advance paid for purchase of
real estate properties” 72,270 72,270
Reversal of net fair value gains recorded in prior yeats (35,770) (35,770)
Advance paid for purchase of teal estate propetties (Note 16)* 36,500 36,500
Provision on advance paid for purchase of real estate properties (Note
16) (36,500) (36,500

The amounts outstanding are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. No guarantees have been given to the
related parties.

* The amount under the advance paid for real estate properties (AED 36.5 million) was represented as Investment
Properties with a carrying value in the books of AED 72.3 million in the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020. The said asset represents purchased assets from related parties during the years 2013 and 2014. The
putchased assets compise a 60 residential-unit in a single building and a plot of land of 150,000 square feet with integrated
infrastructure. For one of the assets, the agreement was entered in 2013 to purchase 150,000 square feet of the land, which
was reduced to 56,800 square feet and later amended to 78,900 square feet based on the instruction received from the
former Chairman who was also the representative of the related party.
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11. Related party balances and transactions (continued)
Balances with former major shareholder (continued)

The counterparties (related parties) to the above transactions never fulfilled their obligations to the Company (the Buyet),
and as a result the Company did not obtain the title deeds nor obtain possession of the said assets. This has resulted in the
incorrect recognition of fair value gains of AED 35.8 million on investment properties in tespect of which the Company
never obtained possession or legal title, and the misappropriation of advances amounting to AED 36.5 million paid to a
related party towards the acquisition of the investment properties. Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Company
decided to book a full provision (AED 72.3 million) against the said assets and proceed with legal action against all involved
patties, to recover the Company’s tights, in accordance with the resolution of Shareholders Assembly Meeting held on 30
September 2021.

Duting the year, the Company enteted into the following transactions with telated parties:
For the year ended 31 December

2022 2021
AED’000 AED’000
Transactions with entities related to Board members
Premiums wtitten 1,201 1,299
Claims paid (2,445) (897)
FD interest income from Bank of Umm Al-Qaiwan 439 -
Bank charges 108 -
Rental paid 504 525
Compensation of key management personnel
Short-term benefits 4,440 4,388
Long-term benefits 200 200
Board of Directors’ fees 1,655 1,600
12.  Contingent liabilities
As at 31 As at 31
December December
2022 2021
AED’000 AED000
Letters of guarantee* 13,186 15,790

*Includes AED 10 million (31 December 2021: AED 10 million) issued in favor of the CBUAE (Note 7).

The Company, in common with the majority of insurers, is subject to litigation in the normal course of its business. Based
on independent legal advice, the Company considers that the outcome of the outstanding court cases will not have a
material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

13. Payables to policyholders of unit linked products

The Company issues unit linked policies which have both insurance risk and investment components, The investment
portion is invested on behalf of the policyholders as disclosed in note 6.3 of these financial statements.
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13.  Payables to policyholders of unit linked products (continued)

Movement during the year:

As at 31 As at 31
December December
2022 2021
AED’000 AED’000
As at 1 January 368,887 286,798
Putchase 101,398 108,368
Sales (52,201) (58,521)
Other charges (769) (2,4306)
Change in fair value of the unit linked products (67,702) 34,678
349,613 368,887
14. Insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance contract assets
As at Asat
31 December 31 Decembet
2022 2021
AED’000 AED’000
Gross insurance contract liabilities
Claims reported unsettled 509,981 579,170
Claims incurred but not reported 107,174 100,358
Unallocated loss adjustment expense reserve 5,433 6,974
Unexpired risk reserve 37,492 8,048
Third party recoveries 4,238 3,544
Mathematical reserve 91,323 139,040
Unearned premiums 238,401 253,786
Provision for default claims and refund 14,329 14,329
Gross insurance contract liabilities 1,008,371 1,105,249
Reinsurance contract assets
Claims reported unsettled (439,097) {506,533)
Claims incurred but not reported (76,159) (65,379)
Unexpired risk resetve (31,031) 2,672
Third party recoveries (8,480) (8,163)
Mathematical reserve (65,858) (119,373)
Unearned premiums (133,151) (134,738)
Total reinsurance contract assets (753,776) (831,514
Net
Claims reported unsettled 70,884 72,637
Claims incurred but not reported 31,015 34979
Unallocated loss adjustment expense reserve 5,433 6,974
Unexpired tisk resetve 6,461 10,720
Third party recoverties (4,242) (4,619)
Mathematical reserve 25,465 19,667
Uneatned premiums 105,250 119,048
Provision for default claims and refunds 14,329 14,329
Net insurance contract liabilities 254,595 273,735
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14.  Insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance contract assets (continued)

The gross and net insurance contract liabilides of AED 989,804 thousand and AED 244,508 thousand respectively as
at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: AED 1,087,376 thousand and AED 264,025 thousand respectively) were
certified by the Company’s external appointed actuary. The difference in actuarial certification and the above amounts
is on account of provision for default claims and refunds, third party recoveries against outstanding claims and paid
claims. The changes in the methodologies and assumptions ate detailed in note 26.4 of the financial statements.
Actuarial estimation of the insurance liabilities has been performed by an independent actuary in accordance with the
requirement of new financial regulations issued under Fedetal Law No.6 of 2007 as amended, as amended, pertaining
to the insurance companies and agents. Estimates ate made for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred but not
yet reported at the reporting date (IBNR) using a range of standard actuarial claim projection techniques, based on
empirical data and current assumptions that may include a margin for adverse deviation.
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Union Insurance Company P.].S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

16. Insurance and other receivables

Due from policyholdets and brokers
Due from insurance companies

Due from reinsurance companies

Provision for doubtful debts (due from policyholders, brokets,
insurance and reinsurance companies)

Due from related parties (Note 11)

Provision for doubtful debts — (Due from related parties) (Note 16.1)

Other receivables
Provision for doubtful debts (Note 16.1)

Advance paid for purchase of real estate properties (Note 11)
Provision on advance paid for purchase of real estate propetties
(Note 11)*

Deferred acquisition cost (Note 16.2)
Prepaid expenses

Inside UAE

Due from policyholders and brokers

Due from insurance companies

Due from reinsurance companies

Provision for doubtful debts (due from policyholders, brokers,
insurance and reinsurance companies)

Due ftom related parties (Note 11)

Provision for doubtful debts — (Due from related parties) (Note 11)

Other receivables

Allowance for doubtful receivables (Note 16.1)

Advance paid for putchase of real estate properties (Note 11)*
Provision on advance paid for purchase of real estate propetties
(Note 11)*

Deferred acquisition cost (Note 16.2)

Prepaid expenses

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
AED000 AED000
255,631 280,295
31,446 22,595
20,965 23,422
(37,409) (34,499)
26,603 26,508
(26,360) (26,310)
270,876 292011
40,687 38,946
(271) (271)
40,416 38,675
36,500 36,500
(36,500) (36,500)
20,871 19,061
6,444 6,455
338,607 356,202
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
AED000 AED’000
190,958 224,634
31,446 22,595
3,949 2,802
(24,570) (22,578)
26,603 26,508
(26,360) (26,310)
202,026 227,651
40,687 38,946
(271) @271)
36,500 36,500
(36,500) (36,500)
20,871 19,061
6,444 6,455
269,757 291,842
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

16. Insurance and other receivables (continued)
Asat Asat
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
AED’000 AED’000
Outside UAE

Due from policyholders and brokers 64,673 55,661
Due from reinsurance companies 17,016 20,620

Provision for doubtful debts (due from policyholders, brokers,
insurance and reinsurance companies) (12,839) (11,921)
68,850 64,360

* The amount under the advance paid for real estate properties (AED 36.5 million) was represented as Investment
Properties with a carrying value in the books of AED 72.3 million in the audited financials for the year ended 31
December 2020. The said asset represent a purchased assets from related parties during the years 2013 and 2014. The
putchased assets comprise a 60 residential-unit in a single building and a plot of land of 150,000 square feet with
integrated infrastructure. For one of the assets, the agreement was entered in 2013 to purchase 150,000 square feet of
the land, which was reduced to 56,800 squate feet and later amended to 78,900 square feet based on the instruction
from the former Chairman who was also the representative of the related party. The counterparties (related parties) to
the above transactions never fulfilled their obligations to the Company (the Buyer), and as a resuit the Company did
not obtain the title deeds not obtain possession of the said asset. This has tesulted in the incorrect tecognition of fair
value gains of AED 35.8 million on investment properties in respect of which the Company never obtained possession
or legal title, and the misapptropriation of advances amounting to AED 36.5 million paid to a related party towards the
acquisition of the investment propetties. Accordingly, the Board of the Company decided to book a full provision
(AED 72.3 million) against the said assets and proceed with legal action against all involved parties, to trecover
Company's rights, in accordance with the resolution of Shareholders Assembly Meeting held on 30 September 2021.

16.1 Provision for doubtful debts

As at As at
31 31
December December
2022 2021
AED000 AED’000

Provision for doubtful debts (due from policyholders, brokers,
insurance and reinsurance companies) 34,499 24,849
Provision for doubtful debts — (Due from telated parties) (Note 16.1) 26,310 26,173
Allowance for doubtful receivables (Note 16.1) 271 -
Balance at the beginning of the year 61,080 51,022
Provision during the year 2,977 10,062

Write off during the year (17) @

Balance at the end of the yeatr 64,040 61,080
16.2  Deferred acquisition costs

As at Asat
31 31
December Decembet
2022 2021
AED’000 AED’000
Balance at the beginning of the year 19,061 20,829
Commission paid during the year 84,516 89,204
Commission incurred during the year (82,706) (91,062)
Balance at the end of the year 20,871 19,061
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

16. Insurance and other receivables (continued)

Insurance receivables and due from reinsurance companies are summarised as follows.

As at 31 December 2022

Due from policyholders and brokets
Due from insurance companies
Due from reinsutance companies
Due from related parties (Note 11)
Total

As at 31 December 2021

Due from policyholders and brokers
Due from insurance companies

Due from teinsurance companies
Due from related parties (Note 11)
Total

17, Intangible assets

Cost:

At 1 January 2021
Transfers from CWIP
At 31 December 2021
Additions

Transfets from CWIP
At 31 December 2022

Accumulated Amortisation:
At 1 January 2021

Charge for the year

At 31 December 2021

Chatge for the yeat

At 31 December 2022

Carrying amounts:
At 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2022

Neither past due Past due but Past diie
) . . . and Total
nor impaired not impaired .
impaired
AED000 AED000 AED000 AED’000
89,600 139,693 26,338 255,631
2,609 28,837 - 31,446
2,250 7,644 11,071 20,965
15 228 26,360 26,603
94,474 176,402 63,769 334,645
Neithet past due Past due but Pagt dns
; . . . and Total
nor impaired  not impaired W
impaired
AED’000 AED’000 AED000 AED’000
90,611 165,012 24,672 280,295
1,382 21,213 - 22,595
4,308 9,287 9,827 23,422
3 195 26,310 26,508
96,304 195,707 60,809 352,820
Licensed
know-how
fee Software Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
19,108 16,959 36,067
- 4,199 4,199
19,108 21,158 40,266
- 86 86
= 971 971
19,108 22,215 41,323
8,000 11,306 19,306
3,464 2,922 6,386
11,464 14,228 25,692
3,822 3,086 6,908
15,286 17,314 32,600
7,644 6,930 14,574
3,822 4,901 8,723
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17. Intangible assets (continued)

The Company had paid non-refundable license fee in the year 2018 to utilise and access to know how of the customers
of a bank.

Intangible assets include internally generated softwate amounting to AED 11,143 thousand (31 December 2021 : AED
11,143 thousand) and accumulated amortisation of AED 10,170 thousand (31 December 2021: AED 8,500 thousand).
During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, thete were no additions or deletions to the internally generated

software.

18, Insurance and other payables

As at Asat
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
AED000 AED000
Trade payables 66,450 76,039
Due to insurance and reinsurance companies 102,701 121,457
Reinsurance premium reserve held 27,344 28,906
196,495 226,402

Other payables:
Unclaimed dividends 1,980 1,998
Accrued expenses and other payables 54,282 47,068
Lease liabilities (Note 22) 6,855 32
259,612 275,500

19. Administrative expenses

For the year ended 31 December

2022 2021

AED’000 AED’000

Staff costs (Note 19.1) 58,005 61,310
Depreciation and amottization 11,476 10,868
Legal & professional Fees 4,505 4,461
Maintenance charges 5,020 5,262
Telephone and communications 3,447 3,098
Governmental and regulatory fees 1,968 -
Rent on short term leases 1,918 2,002
Others 4,722 3,883
91,061 90,884

19.1 Staff costs

For the year ended 31 December

2022 2021

AED’000 AED’000

Salaries and allowances 47,331 47,825
Employees’ end of service benefits (Note 23) 2,885 3,081
Staff insurance 3,881 3,229
Other staff benefits 3,908 7,175
58,005 61,310
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19. Administrative expenses (continued)

19.2 The commitment of short term leases

The commitment for short term leases amounting to AED 1,353 thousand for the year ended 31 December 2022 (31

December 2021: AED 1,611 thousand).

19.3  Other operational expenses related to underwriting activities

Producer salaries and incentive
Marketing expenses

Third party administration fees
Other expenses

20. Net investment income/ (loss)

Interest income

Other investment income/ (loss):

Dividend income

Realised gains on sale of investments at FVIPL
Unrealised loss on investments at FVTPL
Investment management expenses

Others

Othet investment loss

Net investment income

For the year ended 31 December

2022 2021
AED’000 AED’000
21,075 26,924
17,292 1,392
8,457 9,186
2,113 904
48,937 38,406

For the year ended 31 December

2022 2021
AED000 AED’000
6,149 6,530
3,018 527
3,173 2917
(5,289) (978)
(1,004) (3,394)
(53) (173)

(155) (1,101)
5,994 5,429
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

22, Teases

@ Amounts recognised in the statement of financial position

The statement of financial position shows the following amounts relating to leases:

22.1  Right-of-use assets — office premises

Balance at the beginning of the year
Addition during the year
Depreciation expense for the year
Balance at the end of the year

22,2  Lease liablities

Movement of lease liabilities during the year was as follows:

At 1 Januaty

Additions duting the year
Accrued interest
Payments during the year
At 31 December

As at As at

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
AED’000 AED’000

637 3,599

9,240 -

(3,016) (2,962)

6,861 637

As at As at

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
AED’000 AED000
32 2,648

9,240 -

413 110

(2,830) (2,726)
6,855 32

The incremental bortowing rate used for calculation of lease liabilities is 6.7% for the year ended 31 December 2022

(31 December 2021: 6.7 %)

Current and non-current poetrtions of lease liabilities are as follows:

Noen-current portion
Current portion

As at As at

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
AED000 AED000
3,821 -

3,034 32

6,855 32
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22, Leases (continued)

(ii) Amounts recognised in the statement of income

Depreciation charged to general and administration expenses

Interest expense on lease liabilities

23. Provision for employees’ end of service benefits

Balance at the beginning of the year
Charge for the year (19.1)

Payments during the year

Balance at the end of the year

24. Basic and diluted earnings per share

Profit for the year (in 000)
Number of outstanding shares
Basic earnings per share (in AED)

For the year ended 31 December

2022 2021
AED’000 AED’000
3,016 2,962
413 110
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
AED’000 AED’000
12,873 10,962
2,885 3,081
(1,334) (1,170)
14,424 12,873
2022 2021
18,328 13,219
330,939 330,939
0.055 0.040

No figutes for diluted earnings per share are presented as the Company has not issued any instruments which
would have an impact on earnings per share when exercised, as such diluted earnings per share is equivalent to

basic eatnings per shate.

25. Social contributions

The Company did not make any social contributdons during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

26. Insurance risk

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the
amount of the resulting claim. By the vety nature of an insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore
unpredictable. The Company wtites general, medical and life insurance contracts. General insurance contracts of
the Company include Liability, Property, Motor, Fire, Marine, General accident and Engineering insurance
contracts. Medical insurance contracts include both individual and group medical insurance contracts. Life insurance

contracts include group, Individual Life and credit life insurance contracts.

The principal risk the Company faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments or
the dming thereof, differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual
benefits paid and subsequent development of long-tetrm claims. Therefore, the objective of the Company is to

ensure that sufficient reserves are available to cover these liabilities.
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26. Insurance risk (continued)
Risk management framework

The Board of Ditectors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk
management framework. The Board has established the Audit and Risk Management Committee, which is
tesponsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management framework. The Committee reports
tegulatly to the Board of Directors on its activities related to Risk Management framework and further
developments. The primary putpose of Risk Management framework is to protect the shareholders from events
that deter the sustainable achievement of the set financial/performance objective.

The Company's tisk management policies ate established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to
set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed tegularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Risk
Management principles are embedded in Company’s operational and financial processes and further
mitigation/controls are implemented for effective Internal Risk Management framework in the functional processes.

The Company’s Audit and Risk Management Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the
Company's risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework
in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Company's Audit and Risk Management Committee is assisted
in its oversight role by Internal Audit and Risk functions.

The Company does not foresee any matetial impact to its business and operations due to possible climate change
effect in the near future. The Company will, however, be collating necessary data to monitor the possible effect on
a periodic basis going forward.

Two key elements of the Company's insurance risk management framework are its underwriting strategy and
reinsurance strategy, as discussed below.

Underwriting strategy

The Company's underwriting strategy is to build balanced portfolios based on a large number of similar risks. This
reduces the vatiability of the portfolio’s outcome.

The undetrwriting strategy is set out by the Company that establishes the classes of business to be written, the
territories in which business is to be written and the industry sectors in which the Company is ptepared to
underwrite. This strategy is cascaded by the business units to individual underwriters through detailed underwriting
authorities that set out the limits that any one underwtiter can write by line size, class of business, territory and
industty in order to ensure apptopriate tisk selection within the portfolio.

Business selection is part of Company’s underwriting procedures/guidelines whereby premiums are charged based
on the assessment and type of the risks. Other factors such as risk inspections, mortality, persistency and cutrent
market trends are also considered in the risk underwriting and premium calculation.

Reinsurance strategy

The Company’s reinsurance arrangements include proportional, non-proportional, excess of loss and catastrophe
coverage. The Company teinsutes a portion of the insurance risks it underwrites in order to control its exposute to
losses and protect capital resources.

The Company has a Reinsurance department that is responsible to. atrange reinsurance atrangement as per the
annual business plans and also for setting the minimum-security criteria for acceptable reinsurance and monitoring
the purchase of reinsurance by the business units against those criteria. The depattment monitors developments
in the reinsurance programme and its ongoing adequacy. As a proactive measure and part of Risk Management
framework, the reinsurets securities rating is monitored for any downgrade from credit risk perspective. The
reinsurance repulations issued by the CBUAE are also incorporated in the Reinsurance strategy.

The Company enters into a combination of proportionate and non-proportionate reinsutance treaties to reduce the
net exposute to the Company. In addition, underwriters are allowed to buy facultative teinsurance in certain
specified circumstances,
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26. Insurance risk (Continued)
26.1  Frequency and severity of claims

The Company manages tisks through its underwriting strategy, adequate reinsurance atrangements and proactive
claims handling. The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that the underwritten risks ate well diversified in
terms of type and amount of risk, industty and geography. Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate
risk selection ctiteria.

The Company has the right not to renew individual policies, to re-price the tisk, to impose deductibles and to reject
the payment of a fraudulent claim. Insurance contracts also entitle the Company to putsue third parties for payment
of some or all costs (for example, subrogation). Furthermore, the Company’s strategy limits the total exposure to
any one territory and the exposute to any one industty.

The reinsurance arrangements include excess and catastrophe coverage. The effect of such reinsurance
arrangements is that the Company should not suffer net insurance losses of a set minimum limit of AED 1,000
thousand (31 December 2021: 1,000 thousand) in any one event. The Company has sutvey units dealing with the
mitigation of tisks surrounding claims. This unit investigates and recommends ways to imptrove risk claims. The
risks are frequently reviewed individually and adjusted to reflect the latest information on the underlying facts,
current law, jurisdiction, contractual terms and conditions, and other factors. The Company actively manages and
pursues eatly settlements of claims to reduce its exposure to unpredictable developments.

26.2  Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments

Claims on insurance contracts are payable on a claims-occutrence basis. The Company is liable for all insured events
that occurred duting the term of the contract, even if the loss is discovered after the end of the contract term. As a
result, certain claims are settled over a long period of time and element of the claims provision includes incurred
but not reported claims (IBNR). The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than
the estimation of the cost of settling claims already notified to the Company, where information about the claim
event is available. IBNR claims may not be apparent to the insured until many years after the event that gave rise to
the claims. For some insurance contracts, the IBNR proportion of the total liability is high and will typically display
greater variations between initial estimates and final outcomes because of the greater degree of difficulty of
estimating these liabilities. In estimating the liability for the cost of reported claims not yet paid, the Company
considers information available from loss adjusters and information on the cost of settling claims with similar
characteristics in previous periods. Large claims are assessed on a case-by-case basis or projected separately in order
to allow for the possible distortive effect of their development and incidence on the rest of the pottfolio. In
estimating the liability for claims incurred but not reported, the Company involves an independent external
appointed actuary.

The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to be incurred in settling claims, net of the expected
subrogation value and other recoveries. The Company takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has appropriate
information regarding its claims’ exposures. However, given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is
possible that the final outcome will prove to be different from the otiginal liability established. The amount of
insurance claims is in certain cases sensitive to the level of court awards and to the development of legal precedent
on matters of contract and tort.

Where possible, the Company adopts multiple techniques to estimate the required level of provisions. This provides
a greater understanding of the trends inherent in the experience being projected. The projections given by the
various methodologies also assist in estimating the range of possible outcomes. The most approptiate estimation
technique is selected taking into account the characteristics of the business class and the extent of the development

of each accident yeat.

In calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims (both reported and not), the Company’s estimation techniques
are a combination of loss-ratio-based estimates and an estimate based upon actual claims experience using
predetermined formulae where greater weight is given to actual claims experience as time passes. The initial loss-
ratio estimate is an important assumption in the estimation technique and is based on previous years’ expetience,
adjusted for factors such as premium rate changes, anticipated market expetience and historical claims inflation.
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26. Insurance risk (continued)
26.2  Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments (continued)

The loss ratios for the current and prior yeat, before and after reinsurance are summarised below by type of risk:

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Gross loss Gross loss Net loss
Type of risk ratio Net loss ratio ratio ratio
General insutrance 53% 55% 87% 53%
Life insurance 44% 19% 116% 35%

Based on the simulations performed, the impact on profit of a change of 1% in the loss ratio for both gross and net
of reinsurance recoveries would be as follows:

2022 2021
Gross Net Gross Net
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000

Impact of an increase of 1% in loss ratio 8,299 3,174 7,524 2,997
Impact of a decrease of 1% in loss ratio (8,299) (3,174) (7,524 (2,997)

26.3  Process used to determine the assumptions

The process used to determine the assumptions for calculating the outstanding claim reserve is intended to tesult in
neutral estimates of the most likely or expected outcome. The sources of data used as inputs for the assumptions
ate internal, using detailed studies that are cartied out quarterly. The assumptions are checked to ensure that they
are consistent with observable market practices or other published information.

The natute of the business makes it very difficult to predict with certainty the likely outcome of any particulat claim
and the ultimate cost of notified claims. Each notified claim is assessed on a separate, case by case basis with due
regard to the claim circumstances, information available from loss adjusters and histotical evidence of the size of
similar claims.

Case estimates are reviewed regulatly and are updated as and when new information arises.

The provisions are based on information currently available. However, the ultimate liabilities may vary as a result of
subsequent developments ot if catastrophic events occur. The impact of many of the items affecting the ultimate
costs of the loss is difficult to estimate.

The provision estimation difficulties also differ by class of business due to differences in the underlying insurance
contract, claim complexity, the volume of claims and the individual severity of claims, determining the occurrence
date of a claim, and reporting lags.

The method used by the Company for calculating the provision of IBNR takes into account historical data, past
estimates and details of the reinsurance programme, to assess the expected size of reinsurance recoveties. The

methods more commonly
used are the chain-ladder (“CL”), expected loss ratios (“ELR”) and the Bornhuetter-Ferguson (“BF”)methods.

Chain-ladder methods may be applied to ptemiums, paid claims ot incurred claims (for example, paid claims plus
case estimates). The basic technique involves the analysis of historical claims development factors and the selection
of estimated development factots based on this historical pattern. The selected development factors are then applied
to cumulative claims data for each accident year that is not yet fully developed to produce an estimated ultimate
claims cost for each accident year.
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26. Insurance risk (continued)
26.3  Process used to determine the assumptions (continued)

Chain-ladder techniques are most apptoptiate for those accident years and classes of business that have reached a
relatively stable development pattern. Chain-ladder techniques ate less suitable in cases in which the insurer does
not have a developed claims history for a particular class of business.

The Bornhuetter-Ferguson method uses a combination of a benchmark or market- based estimate and an estimate
based on claims expetience. The former is based on a measute of exposute such as premiums; the latter is based on
the paid ot incutred claims to date. The two estimates are combined using a formula that gives more weight to the
experience-based estimate as time passes. This technique has been used in situations in which developed claims
expetience was not available for the projection (recent accident years ot new classes of business).

The choice of selected results for each accident year of each class of business depends on an assessment of the
technique that has been most appropriate to obsetved historical developments. In certain instances, this has meant
that a weighted average of different techniques have been selected for individual accident years or groups of accident
years within the same class of business. The Company has an internal actuary and independent external actuaries
are also involved in the valuation of technical reserves of the Company and has used historical data for the past 9
years.

The assumptions used for the life insurance contracts disclosed in this note are as follows:

Mortality

An appropriate base table of standard mortality is chosen depending on the type of contract. An investigation into
Company’s expetience over the most tecent three years is performed, and statistical methods are used to adjust the
rates reflected in the table to a best estimate of mortality for that year, Where data is sufficient to be statisdcally
credible, the statistics genetated by the data are used without reference to an industry table. For contracts insuring
survivorship, an allowance is made for future mortality improvements based on trends identified in the data and in
the continuous mortality investigations performed by independent actuarial bodies.

Morbidity
The rate of recovery from disability is detived from industry experience studies, adjusted whete appropriate for the

Company’s own experience.

An analysis of sensitivity around vatious scenarios provides an indication of the adequacy of the Company’s
estimation process. The Company believes that the liability for claims reported in the statement of financial position
is adequate.

However, it recognises that the process of estimation is based upon certain variables and assumptions which could
differ when claims ate finally settled.
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26. Insurance risk (continued)

26.4  Changes in assumptions and sensitivity analysis

This table illustrates assumptions used for IBNR calculation

The loss origin is the accident quarter in which the loss is reported.

Year 2022 2021

IBNR Assumption Weighting Loss Loss Weighting Loss Loss
Line of Business CL/ELR | BF | origins | Ratios CL/ELR BF | origins | Ratos
Aviation 100% 50% 2 30% 50% 50% 2 30%

Engineering 50% 25% 2 75% 75% 25% 2 75%

Fire 75% 50% 2 60% 50% 50% 2 60%

General Accident 50% 100% - 25% 0% 100% - 25%

Liability 0% 25% 2 30% 75% 25% 2 30%

Matine Cargo 75% 100% - 100% 0% 100% - 100%
Marine Hull 0% 50% 2 100% 50% 50% 2 115%
Group Life 50% 100% - 50% 0% 100% - 50%

Credit Life 0% 25% 2 25% 50% 50% 2 30%

Medical Others 75% 0% 2 50% 100% 0% 2 60%

Medical Pentacare 100% 0% 2 65% 100% 0% 2 65%

Medical Nextcare 100% 50% 2 68% 50% 50% 2 68%

Medical NAS 50% 100% - 65% 0% 100% - 65%

Motor TPL 0% 0% 3 45% 100% 0% 3 45%

Motor Comprehensive 100% 0% 3 60% 100% 0% 3 60%

Motor Comprehensive

Cat 100% 0% 2 1% 100% 0% 2 1%

This table illustrates the assumptions used for mathematical reserve and non-unit reserve calculation

Term
Assumption Individual Life Assurance Credit Life Unit-Linked
Morttality 140% RI rates 140% AMCO00 | 125% AMCO0 100% RI rates
Interest Rate 3% pa 3% pa 3% pa 3% pa
Renewal
Expenses AED 35 AED 35 AED 45 AED 230
Inflation 5% pa 5% pa 5% pa 5% pa
Unit Fund
Growth - - - 3% pa
The following changes in IBNR assumptions have been made between the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2022.
® Adding one year of data
® Changing the loss ratio
¢ Changing the number of otigins used for the ELR method
[ ]

Changing the weights applied to each tail method

Changing the outlier percentage
Changing the development factor
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26. Insurance risk (continued)

26.4

Changes in assumptions and sensitivity analysis (continued)

The following table shows the impact of Changes in IBNR assumptions relating to major lines of business:

General

2022 Motor Medical Credit Life Fire Accident

AED’000 AED000 AED’000 AED000 AED’000
IBNR at the beginning of
the year 17,298 7,123 1,789 2,596 2,522
Change in data (5,517) (354) 2,647 (1,454) (315)
Loss ratio - (2,047) (856) - -
Expected loss ratio origins - - - - -
Method weights - - (33) - -
Large claims IBNR - - - 22 -
Selected development 395 2,319 121 822 1,250
IBNR at the end of the year 12,176 7,041 3,668 1,986 3,457

General

2021 Motor Medical Credit Life Fire Accident

AED’000 AED’000 AED000 AED’000 AED’000
IBNR at the beginning of
the year 26,937 9,635 1,719 3,336 1,623
Change in data (7,792) (4,451) (1,960) 529 2,105
Loss ratio (1,164 656 2,348 (1,269) (688)
Expected loss ratio origins 1,071 - - - -
Method weights 2,263 1,989 (53) - (246)
Selected development (4,017 (706) (265) - (272)
IBNR at the end of the year 17,298 7,123 1,789 2,596 2,522

The following table shows sensitivity impact on general insurance contracts:
Overall sensitivity of net results
AED 000
Technical provisions category Pessimistic Best Optimistic
Estimate Estimate Estimate
IBNR and IBNER 52,306 31,016 27,425
ULAE 6,584 5,433 5,195
AURR 12,768 6,460 3,641
Subtotal 71,658 42,910 36,261
Other technical provisions 149,061 149,061 149,061
Grand total 220,719 191,971 185,322
Sensitivities Pessimistic Best Optimistic
Estimate Estimate Estimate
IBNR and IBNER increase NLR by 5% Best estimate NLR decrease NLR by 5%
ULAE increase NLR by 5% Best estimate NLR decrease NLR by 5%
AURR increase NLR by 5% Best estimate NLR decrease NLR by 5%
increase AER by 2% Best estimate AER decrease AER by 2%
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27. Capital risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are:

o to comply with the insurance capital requirements required by U.A.E. Federal Law No. 6 of 2007 (as
amended), on Establishment of Insurance Companies register of the Central Bank of the U.A.E.
(“CBUAE”) and Organization of its Operations.

° to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concemn so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholdets; and

° to ptovide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing insurance contracts commensurately with the
level of risk.

In U.AE., Insurance Companies register of the Central Bank of the U.A.E. (“CBUAE?”) specifies the minimum
amount and type of capital that must be held by the Company in addition to its insurance liabilities. The
minimum required capital (presented in the table below) must be maintained at all times throughout the year.

The table below summarises the minimum required capital of the Company and the total capital held.

As at Asat

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

AED’000 AED'000

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Minimum Capital Requitement (MCR) 100,000 100,000

Solvency Capital Requitement (SCR) 142,766 138,697

Minimum Guarantee Fund (MGF) 90,252 90,379

Own Funds:

Basic own funds 162,889 136,399
Ancillary own funds

MCR Solvency Margin-Surplus/(Deficit) 62,889 36,399

SCR Solvency Margin-Surplus/(Deficit) 20,123 (2,298)

MGEF Solvency Matgin-Surplus/(Deficit) 72,637 46,020

The Insurance Companies register of the Central Bank of the U.A.E. (“CBUAE”) has issued resclution No. 42
for 2009 setting the minimum subsctibed ot paid-up capital of AED 100 million for establishing insutance
firms and AED 250 million for reinsurance firms. The resolution also stipulates that at least 75 percent of the
capital of the insurance companies established in the UAE should be owned by UAE or GCC national
individuals or corporate bodies. The Company is in compliance with the minimum capital requitements.

Further, as per Article (8) of section (2) of financial regulations issued for insurance companies in U.A.E., the
Company shall at all times comply with the requirements of solvency margin.
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28 Fair value measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an otdetly transaction
between matket participants at the measutement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fait value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are desctibed as follows:

The Company measutes fair values using the following fair value hierarchy, which reflects the significance of the
inputs used in making the measurements.

Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active matket for an identical instrument.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable either directly (i.e., as prices) or
indirectly (i.e., detived from prices). This category includes insttuments valued using: quoted market prices in active
markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical ot similatr insttuments in markets that ate considered less
than active; ot other valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from
market data.

Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the valuation technique
includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the
insttument’s valuation. This category includes insttuments that ate valued based on quoted prices for similar
instruments for which significant unobsetvable adjustments or assumptions are requited to reflect differences
between the instruments.

Valuation techniques include net present value and discounted cash flow models, comparison with similar
instruments for which market observable prices exist. Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques include
risk-free and benchmatk interest rates, credit spreads and othet premia used in estimating discount rates, bond and
equity prices, foreign currency exchange rates, equity index prices and expected price volatilities and cotrelations.

The objective of valuation techniques is to artive at a fair value measurement that reflects the price that would
be received to sell the asset or paid to transfer the liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date.

28.1 Fair value of financial instruments carried at amortized cost

Management considers that the catrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at
amottised cost in the financial statements approximate their fair values.

28.2  Valuation techniques and assumptions applied for the purposes of measuring fair value

The fair values of financial and non-financial assets and financial liabilities are determined using similar valuation
techniques and assumptions as used in the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

28. Fair value measurements (continued)
28.3  Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial position (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of financial assets measured at FVTOCI and FVTPL.

FVIPL FVTOCI Total

AED’000 AED’000 AED’000

At 1 January 2021 7,396 300 7,696
Disposals (754) - (754)
Provision for doubtful debts - (300) (300)
Changes in fair value (2,823) - (2,823)
As at 31 December 2021 3,819 - 3,819
Disposals (1,243) - (1,243)
Changes in fair value (212) - (212)

As at 31 December 2022 2,364 - 2,364

There were no transfers between the levels during the yeat.
29. Financial Risk Management

The Company is exposed to a range of financial tisks through its financial assets, financial liabilities, reinsurance
assets and insurance liabilities. In particular, the key financial risk is that in the long-term its investment proceeds
ate not sufficient to fund the obligations arising from its insurance contracts. The most important components of
this financial risk ate credit tisk, liquidity risk, matket risk (which includes: foreign currency risk, equity and debt
price risk and interest rate risk) and operational risk.

29.1 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss
to the Company.

Key areas where the Company is exposed to credit risk are:

insurance receivables;

other receivables;

investment securities - debt;

bank deposits with otiginal maturities of more than three months;
statutory deposit; and

cash and cash equivalents

The Company has adopted a policy of dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk
of financial loss from defaults. The Company’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties ate
continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved
counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by
Management annually.

Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk. This does not, however, discharge the Company’s liability as primary
insuter. If a reinsuter fails to pay a claim for any reason, the Company remains liable for the payment to the
policyholder. The creditworthiness of reinsurers is considered on an annual basis by reviewing their financial
strength prior to finalisation of any contract.

70



Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

29. Financial Risk Management (continued)
29.1  Credit risk (continued)

The Company maintains records of the payment histoty for significant contract holdets with whom it conducts
regular business. The exposure to individual counterparties is also managed by other mechanisms, such as the right
of offset where counterparties are both debtots and creditors of the Company. Management information reported
to the Company includes details of provisions for impairment on insurance receivables and subsequent write-offs.
Exposures to individual policyholdets and groups of policyholders ate collected within the ongoing monitoring of
the controls. Whete there exists significant exposure to individual policyholders, or homogenous groups of
policyholders, a financial analysis equivalent to that conducted for reinsurers is carried out by the Company.

Insurance receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical
areas. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of insurance receivable.

The Company has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposute spread over a latge number of
counterparties and customers. The Company defines counterparties as having similar characteristics if they are
related entites. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, which is net of impairment losses,
represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit tisk.

29.2  Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company’s short, medium and long-
term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the matutity profiles
of financial assets and liabilities.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s insurance and financial instraments. The
contractual maturities of the financial instruments have been determined on the basis of the remaining petiod at
the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The maturity profile is monitored by management to ensure
adequate liquidity is maintained. The maturity profile of the financial assets and financial liabilities at the reporting
date based on contractual repayment arrangements was as follows:
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29. Financial Risk Management (continued)

29.2  Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2022

Assets
Statutory deposit
Tnvestment securities
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value
through other
comprehensive income
Unit linked assets
Reinsurance contract assets
Bank deposits with original
matutities of more than
three months
Deferred acquisition costs
Insurance and other
receivables (excluding
prepayments and deferred
acquisition costs)
Cash and cash equivalents
Total

Liabilities

Insurance conttact liabilities
Payable to policyholdets of
unit-linked products
Insurance and other
payables (excluding lease
liabilities)

Lease liabilities

Total

Carrying Less than1 Over 5 No maturity
amount year 1to 5 years yeats date Total
AED’000 AED000 AED000 AED000 AED000 AED000
10,000 - - - 10,000 10,000
76,752 5,830 5,443 - 65,479 76,752
27 “ - - 27 27
349,613 - 87,403 262,210 - 349,613
753,776 431,749 206,983 102,325 12,719 753,776
68,888 52,605 16,283 = = 68,888
20,871 20,871 - - - 20,871
311,292 311,292 - - - 311,292
205,667 205,667 - = = 205,667
1,796,886 1,028,014 316,112 364,535 88,225 1,796,886
1,008,371 581,681 265,991 133,652 27,047 1,008,371
349,613 - 87,403 262,210 ~ 349,613
252,757 252,757 ok - - 252,757
6,855 3,034 3,821 - - 6,855
1,617,596 837,472 357,215 395,862 27,047 1,617,596
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29,
29.2

As at 31 December 2021

Assets
Statutory deposit
Tnvestment securities
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value
through other
comprehensive income
Unit linked assets
Reinsutrance contract assets
Bank deposits with original
maturities of more than
three months
Deferred acquisition costs
Insurance and other
receivables (excluding
prepayments and deferred
acquisition costs)
Cash and cash equivalents
Total

Liabilities

Insurance contract liabilides
Payable to policyholders of
unit-linked products
Insurance and other
payables (excluding lease
liabilities)

Lease liabilities

Total

Financial Risk Management (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Carrying  Less than 1 No maturity
amount year 1to 5 years Over 5 yeats date Total
AED000  AED’000 AED000 AED000 AED’000  AED000
10,000 - - - 10,000 10,000
47,871 11,102 11,956 - 24,813 47,871
17 - - - 17 17
368,887 - 57,247 311,640 - 368,887
831,514 454,251 203,254 174,009 - 831,514
205,965 189,204 16,761 - - 205,965
19,061 19,061 - - - 19,061
330,686 330,686 - - - 330,686
91,881 91,881 - - - 91,881
1,905,882 1,096,185 289,218 485,649 34,830 1,905,882
1,105,249 623,339 267,890 214,020 - 1,105,249
368,887 - 57,247 311,640 - 368,887
275,468 275,468 - - - 275,468
32 32 - - - 32
1,749,636 898,839 325,137 525,660 - 1,749,636
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29. Financial Risk Management (continued)
29.3  Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cashflows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result
of changes in market prices, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual security, ot its
issuer, or factors affecting all securities traded in the market. The Company’s market risks arise from open positions
in (a) foreign currencies (b) interest beating and (c) price risk assets and liabilities, to the extent they are exposed
to general and specific market movements. Management sets limits on the exposure to currency and interest tate
tisk that may be acceptable, which are monitored on a regular basis. However, the use of this approach does not
prevent losses outside of these limits in the event of more significant market movements. The unit linked contracts
have not been considered for sensitivity of market tisk and as these ate merely passed through contracts.

Sensitivities to market risks included below ate based on a change in one factor while holding all other factors
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the factors may be correlated - for example,
credit spreads, changes in interest rate and changes in foreign currency rates.

Market risk drivers include equity prices, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and interest rates. The Company
limits market risk by maintaining a diversified portfolio and by continuous monitoring of developments in local
equity and bond markets. In addition, the Company actively monitors the key factors that affect stock and bond
market movements, including analysis of the operational and financial performance of investees.

29.3.1 Foreign currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial insttument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates and arises from financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency. The Company’s functional cutrency
is the UAE Dirham,

The Company has also exposures in USD, to which the AED is pegged and the Company’s exposute to currency
tisk is limited to that extent.

29.3.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in martket interest rates.

The Company's exposure to interest rate risk relates to its bank deposits. At 31 December 2022, bank deposits
carty fixed interest rates ranging from 1.5% to 8% per annum (31 December 2021: 0.15% to 8.5% per annum) and
therefore not exposed to cashflow interest rate risk.

29.3.3 Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices
(other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments
traded in the market.

The Company’s price risk exposure relates to financial assets and financial liabilities whose values will fluctuate as
a result of changes in market prices. The Company’s equity price risk policy requires it to manage such risks by
setting and monitoring objectives and constraints on investments, diversification plans, sector and matket. The
fair values of financial assets are not different from their carrying values.
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29. Financial Risk Management (continued)
29.3  Market risk (continued)

29.3.3 Price risk (continued)

Sensitivities

The table below shows the results of sensitivity testing on the Company’s profit or loss and other comprehensive
income by type of business. The sensitivity analysis indicates the effect of changes in price tisk factots atising from
the impact of the changes in these factors on the Company’s investments:

2022

Quoted debt investments
Quoted equity investments
Investment in funds
Unquoted equity investments

2021

Quoted debt investments
Quoted equity investments
Investment in funds
Unquoted equity investments

29.4  Operational risk

10% increase in price

10% decrease in price

FVIPL FVTOCI
AED000 AED000

1,197
6,242

236

1,645
2,024
736
382

1 W

1N

FVTPL FVTOCI
AED’000 AED’000

(1,197) -
(6,242) ©)

(236) :

(1,645) ,
(2,024) @)
(736) -
(382) s

Operational risk is the risk of loss atising from system failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls
fail to perform, operatonal risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or can lead

to financial loss.

The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but by initiating a tigorous control framewotk and
by monitoring and responding to potential tisks, the Company is able to manage the risks.

The Company has detailed systems and procedutes manuals with effective segregation of duties, access controls,
authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff training and assessment processes etc. with a focus on
compliance and internal audit framework. Business risks such as changes in envitonment, technology and the
industry are monitored through the Company’s strategic planning and budgeting process.
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29. Financial Risk Management (continued)
29.5  Classification of financial assets and liabilities

(a) The table below sets out the Company’s classification of each class of financial asset and liability and their
carrying amounts as at 31 December 2022:

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Total
cost

AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - - 205,667 205,667
Bank deposits with original maturities
of more than three months - - 68,888 68,888
Statutory deposit - - 10,000 10,000
Investment secutities 76,752 27 - 76,779
Insurance and other receivables - - 338,607 338,607
Unit linked assets 337,670 - 11,943 349,613
Total 414,422 27 635,105 1,049,554
Financial liabilities:
Insurance and other payables - - 259,612 259,612
Payables to policyholders of unit
linked products 337,670 - 11,943 349,613
Total 337,670 - 271,555 609,225

(b) The table below sets out the Company’s classification of each class of financial asset and liability and their
carrying amounts as at 31 December 2021:

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortsed Total
cost

AED’000 AED000 AED’000 AED000
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - - 91,881 91,881
Bank deposits with original matutities
of more than three months - - 205,965 205,965
Statutory deposit - - 10,000 10,000
Investment securities 47,871 17 - 47,888
Insurance and other receivables = - 356,202 356,202
Unit linked assets 355,533 - 13,354 368,887
Total 403,404 17 677,402 1,080,823
Financial liabilities:
Insurance and other payables - - 275,500 275,500
Payables to policyholders of unit
linked products 355,533 - 13,354 368,887
Total 355,533 - 288,854 644,387
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30. Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements wete apptoved by the Board of Ditectors and authorized for issue on 20 March 2023,

31. Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures were reclassified to match the current year’s classification. This re-classification has no
impact in the total assets, liabilities and accumulated losses of the priot year except as follow:

31 December 2021 -

as previously 31 December 2021 -
reported Reclassification  as currently reported
AED AED AED
Net change in unearned premiums,
mathematical reserve and policyholders’
reserve (111,249) 34,678 (76,571)
Net earned premium 264,995 34,678 299,673
Total underwriting income 357,009 34,678 391,687
Net movement in reserve of unit linked
products 34,678 (34,678 -
Total underwriting expenses (337,557) (34,678) (372,235)

32. Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the statement of financial position date that would significantly affect the
amounts tepotted in the financial statements as at and for the yeat ended 31 December 2022.
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